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1 TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

2 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: Here begins

3 Videotape No. 1, Volume |, in the deposition of

4 Cardina Dolan in the matter of in re Archdiocese
5 of Milwaukee. Today's date is February 20, 2013,
6 and thetimeis approximately 1:38. This

7 deposition is being held at the Offices of

8 Archdiocese Office on 1011 First, New York City.
9 My name the John Martucci with Pirozzi Reporting
10 and I'm the videographer. The court reporter is
11 Kathy A. Hamawith Halma-Jilek. Please

12 introduce yourselves for the record, Counselor.

13 MR. ANDERSON: For the claimants, Jeff
14 Anderson.
15 MR. FINNEGAN: Also for the claimants,

16 Mike Finnegan.

17 MR. LO COCO: My nameis Frank LoCoco.
18 | represent the Archdiocese of Milwaukee and |

19 represent Cardina Dolan. To my left is Jerry

20 Topczewski, who is my client representative from
21 the Archdiocese, and to hisleft is Jim McCabe

22 who's here. He's counselor for the Archdiocese
23 of New York. And this deposition was noticed up,
24 it's being taken pursuant to notice and under

25 seal pursuant to the confidentiality ordersin
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1 thecase.

2 CARDINAL TIMOTHY M. DOLAN, called as
3 awitness herein by the Claimants, after having

4 been first duly sworn, was examined and testified

5 asfollows:

6 EXAMINATION

7 BY MR. ANDERSON:

8 Q Cardina, what was the date of your ordination?
9 A | wasordained apriest June 19, 1976.

10 Q And you then have been a priest for how many
11 years?

12 A Thirty six and one-half years.

13 Q And when you consider the various positions that
14 you have held as a Bishop, how many yearsin

15 total has that been?

16 A | wasordained abishop on August 15, 2001, so
17 that's -- that will be 12 years this August.

18 Q And you have now been Cardina -- Actually,
19 Archbishop of New York and Cardinal for ayear?
20 A | have been aCardina for ayear. | was named
21 Archbishop of New York on February 23, 2009, and
22 then | became -- Then | was named a Cardinal a

23 year ago on February -- I'm having trouble with

24 the date of that. It was ayear ago.

25 MR. TOPCZEWSKI: February 18th.
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q | have an installation of Archbishop of New York
3 of April 15, '09.

4 A April 15, 2009 iswhen | was installed, yes.

5 Q Prior to your appointment to the position of

6 Archbishop of Milwaukee, you had been a priest of

7 and Auxillary Bishop at the Archdiocese of St.

8 Louis, correct?

9 A Right, right.

10 Q According to the records| reviewed, it would
11 appear that you were appointed to be the

12 Archbishop of Milwaukee on June 25, 2002?

13 A Correct.

14 Q And actualy installed as Archbishop in Milwaukee
15 asof August 28, 2002. Does that sound correct?

16 A Correct.

17 Q Between the time of your appointment to Milwaukee
18 and the actud installation, that two-month time

19 frame, what, if anything, did you do in order to

20 preparefor that position?

21 A To prepareto be Archbishop of Milwaukee, you
22 mean?

23 Q Yes

24 A Wdl, | was still Auxilliary Bishop in St. Louis,

25 so there was alot of work to be done, and |
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1 think in preparation there was spiritua

2 preparation, because | made aweek's retredt, |

3 know that; | made two weeks vacation. But asfar
4 asactua preparation to become Archbishop of

5 Milwaukee, until | got there on the Sunday

6 before, probably -- | mean, there was preparation
7 asfar astheinvitations, asfar asthe

8 invitation list, readings for the mass, that kind

9 of stuff, but I think you meant more than that,

10 more preparation for the demands of the office.

11 Not too much.

12 Q Isit correct to say that at the time that you

13 were actudly installed in the Archdiocese of

14 Milwaukee, that Bishop Sklba had been the

15 administrator?

16 A Bishop Skiba had been the administrator.

17 Q And his-- and the predecessor Archbishop had
18 been Weakland?

19 A Archbishop Rembrant Weakland. He had been
20 Archbishop.

21 Q Onceyou became the Archbishop of Milwaukee and
22 after August of 2002, did you spend any time

23 face-to-face with Archbishop Wesakland discussing
24 the affairs of the Archdiocese of Milwaukee and

25 how you could succeed in management of them?
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1 A No. | would have spent time with them, but it

2 would have been more social. Asfar as spending

3 time with them on business or on projects or on

4 initiatives, not too much, no, not that | can

5 recdl.

6 Q How long had Bishop Sklba been the administrator

7 of the Archdiocese as far as you know before your

8 installation as Archbishop?

9 A Sure. He, if I'm not mistaken, he would have

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

become administrator of the Archdiocese of
Milwaukee upon resignation of Archbishop
Weskland, which I think, Jerry, came at the end
of May of 2000 --

MR. LO COCO: You'rejust going to have
to do your best with your memory.

THEWITNESS:. Okay. It would have been
from the end of May 2002. So | can't chat with
anybody? You don't have life lines here?

MR. LO COCO: Unless he says you can
chat, no.

MR. ANDERSON: That's okay. Close
enough.

THE WITNESS: End of May of 2009 until |
was installed on August 27th, August 28th.

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan

Page 8



00008
1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q Who did you rely upon most following your

3 instalation to help understand the operations of

4 the Archdiocese of Milwaukee?

5 A Prior to?

6 Q No, once you became the Archbishop.

7 A Oncel became the Archbishop, | would have relied
8 on alot of people. | mean, just corporately |

9 would haverdlied on the Priest Council, the

10 College of Consultors, the Deans, the Pastora

11 Council. | would have relied upon the Finance

12 Council. | would have relied upon the Vicar

13 General, who was with Bishop Sklba. | would have
14 relied heavily upon the Chancellor, Dr. Barbara

15 Anne Cusack. | found myself relying upon the

16 Vicar for Clergy, who was Dr. Father Hornacek,

17 and | would come to rely very much on Jerry, who
18 was at the time Director of Communications, Jerry
19 Topczewski. | should mention Wayne Schneider,
20 who was the Chief Financial Officer. He would

21 have been part of it, too.

22 Q Interms of the problem of sexual abuse by clergy
23 in the Archdiocese, and to the extent there was a

24 problem that preceded your instalation, did you

25 know anything about how it had been dealt with
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00009
prior to your installation?

MR. LO COCO: | just want to make sure
it'simplicit in your question we're focused on

Milwaukee.

1

2

3

4

5 MR. ANDERSON: Yes, | am talking now

6 about your time in Milwaukee and what you may

7 have known before you became the Archbishop.

8 THE WITNESS: Do you mean -- You mean,
9 Mr. Anderson, what | would have known about the
10 Archdiocese of Milwaukee prior to me getting

11 there?

12 BY MR. ANDERSON:

13 Q That'sright.

14 A No, I wouldn't know many specifics, unh-unh.
15 Q Okay. When you werethe Vicar for Clergy in the
16 Archdiocese of St. Louis and for atime as

17 Auxillary Bishop, | think you identified yourself
18 askind of apoint person asit pertained to

19 sexua abusein the Archdiocese. Isthat afair

20 characterization?

21 MR. LO COCO: I'm going to object to the
22 form of the question. It goes back to the point

23 | just made. We're here to talk about Milwaukee.
24 1'm going to let Cardinal Dolan respond to this

25 question, but we are not hereto talk about St.
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1 Louis, New York or any other place in specifics.

2 Go ahead. You can answer.

3 THE WITNESS: What was the question

4 again?

5 BY MR. ANDERSON:

6 Q Didyou consider yourself apoint person for the
7 Archbishop in dealing with sexual abusein St.

8 Louis?

9 A That would -- | would have been Vicar for Clergy,
10 soinsofar asthere was any clergy sexual abuse
11 of minors, | would have been his delegate or

12 liaison on that.

13 Q Onceyou becameinstalled as Archbishop in
14 Milwaukee, tell us how and when you first

15 encountered the problem of sexua abuse by

16 clericsin Milwaukee and your first experiencein
17 that regard.

18 A Sure. Well, look, it's not going to surprise
19 anybody to know at the time that was the major
20 priority of any Bishop in the United States. We
21 had, since it became a national tsunami on the
22 Feast of the Epiphany in January of 2002, that
23 wasamgjor priority for the -- for any Bishop.
24 That was intensified in the summer meseting in

25 Dallas when we deliberated and passed what has
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1 become known as the Dallas Charter. So any

2 Bishop at the time would have had that as a

3 priority, and | sure did when | became Archbishop
4 of Milwaukee.

5 So, yeah, one of my first priorities

6 would beto find out, to ask some questions to

7 make sure that we werein linein our fidelity to

8 the promises that were made by the Dallas

9 Charter. And so that would have been amajor

10 god. | trust that | was rather rigorousin

11 vacuuming knowledge and consulting with people
12 and making sure that we had things in order.

13 Q And asafirst priority that -- as you have

14 described it, to whom did you go to help make

15 sure that the Archdiocese was in line with the

16 promises made?

17 A Towhomdid | go. First of dl, to the Lord

18 asking his grace and guidance, because it was --
19 We were dl facing such difficulties that one

20 would find oneself praying alot, but you mean on
21 thisside of heaven?

2 Q Yes

23 A | would have goneto -- | would have spoken to
24 Joe Hornacek, who was the Vicar for Clergy. |

25 would have spoken to Dr. Barbara Anne Cusack, who
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1 had been extraordinarily diligent and capablein

2 her effortsin this. | would have spoken to

3 Jerry, because he had been -- he had been the

4 masterful in communicating the Archdiocesan steps
5 that had been made, and then there were alot of

6 bodiesthat | would have spoken about. | don't

7 mean physical bodies, | mean consultative bodies.
8 We did, thanks be to God, have avery

9 expert review -- what was called a Review Board,
10 so | would have sat down with them and said,

11 "Take me through this, you are the independent

12 Review Board, are we all right with this." |

13 would have met with the Priest Council.

14 Obviously, | was very concerned about them, the
15 morae of the priests, their take on situations.

16 | would have met -- My predecessor had

17 set up what was called a Community Advisory Board
18 that was made up of people throughout the

19 community, most of whom were not Catholic, who
20 were very passionate about victim assistance, and
21 that group had been up and running, and | met

22 with them. We met once amonth. | found them to
23 be -- Those were not easy meetings, but | found
24 them to be incredibly helpful.

25 | would have met with Bishop Sklba. |
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1 would have met with Matt Flynn, who was the

2 attorney for the Archdiocese. So those were

3 people with whom | would have sat and asked about
4 it.

5 Q Having met with all those you have described to
6 make sure that the Archdiocese was in line with

7 the promises made in the charter, did you

8 conclude that the Archdiocese of Milwaukee wasin
9 compliance with the charter or not in compliance

10 with the charter?

1 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form, time
12 frame.
13 MR. ANDERSON: In your first six months

14 asthe Archbishop of Milwaukee.

15 MR. LO COCO: Thank you.

16 THEWITNESS: Yeah, thanks. Can| -- If
17 | can make adistinction here.

18 MR. ANDERSON: Sure.

19 THE WITNESS: Obviously, when we say "in
20 compliance with the charter," that's pretty

21 broad, as wdll it should be, because there was a

22 lotin there. The mgor thing -- So therewerea

23 lot of issues about compliance with the charter.

24 The mgor thing when | got there that | wanted to
25 be assured of and which | asked everybody to whom
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1 you just referred, are we consonant with the

2 Dallas Charter and the promise we made to our
3 peoplethat thereis no priest against whom there
4 has been a substantiated allegation of sexual

5 abuse of aminor who is currently assigned or

6 publicly exercising his priesthood and, thank

7 God, | was assured there were none. So from that
8 regard, yes, we werein compliance.

9 There's other aspects of the Charter,

10 though, that -- and, of course, abroad aspect of
11 the Charter would be in pastoral outreach to

12 those who had been abused. So | would have
13 thought to mysdlf, yes, even though, thank God,
14 we are in compliance, | think -- and we're

15 certainly in compliance with the letter of the

16 Charter, the spirit of the Charter | want to do

17 more. | would like to amplify our outreach to
18 victims. | would like to continue to try our

19 best to let the victims of sexual abuse by

20 clergy, | would like to let them know that this
21 is-- the church istheir spiritual home and we
22 will do our best to respond to their needs. So
23 from that point of view it was still a challenge.
24 It wasn't adone dedl.

25 Q You mentioned that you wanted to make sure that
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1 no priest had been in ministry or was in ministry

2 against whom substantiated allegations had been

3 made, correct?

4 A Correct.

5 Q Andisitcorrect to say that as far as you knew
6 then in your first year and as Archbishop, there

7 was no priest in ministry that was identified to

8 you against whom substantiated allegations had

9 been made?

10 A That would be correct.

11 Q Didyou ever look at the protocol that had been
12 used by the Archdiocese of Milwaukee to determine
13 whether past complaints made was satisfactory in
14 determining whether an allegation was

15 substantiated or unsubstantiated?

16 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. You

17 can answer, if you understand it and have an

18 answer. | think it's alittle ambiguous.

19 MR. ANDERSON: | canrephraseit. I'm

20 happy to make it a simpler question.

21 BY MR. ANDERSON:

22 Q Didyou look at the protocol that had been used
23 to determine whether something was substantiated
24 and -- versus unsubstantiated?

25 A Yes, | would have -- not only would | have looked
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1 at the protocol, but then | would have found

2 mysdf -- | would have found myself asking the
3 Review Board to go through it with me, becausein
4 the Review Board we had officers of the law, we
5 had attorneys, we had judges, we had

6 psychologists, we had parents, we had teachers.

7 | sad, "Arewe doing this right, are you at

8 peace with this, because you arethe ones | trust

9 totell me" So, yes, | did look at it.

10 Q Do you know what protocol was used for

11 determining whether an alegation was

12 substantiated or not substantiated?

13 A Did I know what protocol was used?

14 Q Yes.

15 A Sure.

16 Q What wasit?

17 A WelI, I'm preaching to the choir with you, you
18 are attorneys, so substantiation could come about
19 anumber of ways, right? You would have

20 admission by the abuser, which very often

21 happened in those days. The abuser would say,
22 "Yes, | did it."

23 You could have substantiation by law

24 enforcement officias, because with Dallas we

25 pledged that we would refer everything to law

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 17



00017
1 enforcement, so they at times would substantiate

2 it. Evenif they did not, we went a step further

3 and we would do our own independent investigation
4 and bring the data and the details from that to

5 our Review Board and then they would. So we kind
6 of had those -- Those were the different steps

7 that we would have in trying to determine

8 substantiation.

9 Q To your knowledge while Archbishop, were any of
10 the dlegations that had been previously

11 determined to be unsubstantiated altered so that

12 they werereviewed to have been substantiated?

13 A | could not remember. | could tell you what we
14 would have done if such a-- if something came

15 in. In other words, if there were anew

16 dlegation against or if there were achangein

17 data or something, then, once again, we would

18 have to take that fresh then and say, "We better

19 start from scratch on thisone," but | can't

20 recdll if any of those camein, ether.

21 Q Okay. I think what I'm getting at isif there

22 was excavation of what the past had been about

23 what allegations had been made and those that

24 were substantiated or unsubstantiated --

25 A Um-hum.
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1 Q --wasthereexcavation of that or not?

2 A Byme no.

3Q Okay.

4 A Butl would have asked -- | would have asked the,
5 for instance, the Review Board, | would have

6 said, "Have you doneit, have you looked at all

7 that, areyou at peace, because we are trusting

8 you, t00," and they assured me that they had.

9 Q Okay. Sowhen you looked at the protocols that
10 had been employed by all those you referred to,
11 wereyou satisfied that the Archdiocese was in

12 compliance with the Charter?

13 A | was, | was, uh-hum.

14 Q And wereyou satisfied that the protocols that
15 had been in place prior to your installation were
16 sufficient so that you continued them?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Did you make any changes to the protocols
19 pertaining to sexual abuse alegations while

20 Archbishop?

21 MR. LO COCO: Just on the issue of

22 substantiation or handling the whole topic?

23 BY MR. ANDERSON:

24 Q WA, let'stalk about substantiation first.

25 A No, not that | can remember, no. | mean, you

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan
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1 could imagine we were constantly talking about

2 them and discussing them and bringing them to the

3 attention of professionalsto say, "Are we doing

4 thisright." You can imagine we were, even as

5 Bishops nationally, we were constantly

6 reexamining thisto make sure that we had it

7 precise.

8 You could imagine that -- You could

9 imagine that as different cases would come about

10 you would say, "We have to be attentive to this

11 or we need to change the way," but, no, in

12 generd | can't recall any substantive changes

13 that would have been done to the -- excuse me --

14 to the protocol that | found in place when | got

15 there.

16 Q Okay. AsArchbishop of Milwaukee -- And | think
17 you were Archbishop of Milwaukee for seven years?
18 A Yeah, from 2002 to 2009. About six and one-half
19 years.

20 Q Inthat timeframe did you make any changesin
21 how the Archdiocese of Milwaukee dealt with and
22 addressed sexual abuse of minors by clerics?

23 A Again, just likein general, yes.

24 Q Ingenerd.

25 A Yes, | would say so. While, thanks beto God, |
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1 found the protocols for the very precise and

extraordinarily important machinery to deal with
the accusations, that | found that to bein

order. Obvioudly, like| said before, there's
moreto it than that. So generically in the

whole what you might call comprehensive pastor

response to this of which the compliance to that

co N o 0o B~ W DN

substantiation is a part, albeit avery important

9 one, there were some changes there, um-hum.

10 Q Can you identify what changes you directed be
11 made?

12 A | can remember, athough I don't want to imply
13 that thiswas not donein the past, | can

14 remember, for instance, saying, "'l want the word
15 out that any victim that wants to meet with me

16 will find awarm welcome and they can comein. |
17 want the word out that we should do everything

18 possible to make sure that all the literature was

19 available in every church possible."

20 I would meet with people like Jerry to

21 say, "What can we do communications wise to let
22 people know what we are doing, what we have done,
23 what we hopeto do." | tried to go to some

24 listening sessions. | can remember three of them

25 because they were, obviously, rather painful
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1 where | would sit down in kind of atown meeting

2 setting and listen to people. Those are some of

3 thethings that come to mind that | tried to do

4 and wanted to do. Later on the dramatic one

5 would be theinvitation to the voluntary

6 mediation.

7 Q Weasthat adecision made by you to create a

8 mediation process and invite people to comeinto
9 it?

10 A W, that was adecision made by me. | can't
11 take credit for theidea. Theidea actualy came
12 from the victim -- the abuse representatives.

13 Remember, | talked to you about that Community
14 Advisory Board. Actualy, the idea seemed to

15 have come from some of the victims advocacy

16 groups that thought that voluntary mediation

17 could be extraordinarily beneficial and that

18 we -- It was providential, our geography, because
19 the Marquette University had an internationally
20 renown, | forget what they called it, likea

21 conflict resolution center that would have the

22 resources and the personnel available to do such
23 athing. So that would happen later.

24 Q Do you remember what year that invitation to

25 mediation was made?
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1A ldont Iwishl did.

2 Q You mentioned that it was influenced in part by a

3 victims advocacy group. Specifically who?

4 A That Community Advisory Board that | mentioned to
5 you, alot of great people on that, many

6 counselors that worked with victims, and actualy

7 SNAP was one of those that said, "This would be

8 very helpful to usif wedid it."

9 Q Who a SNAP would have been the spokesperson or
10 personsthat influenced that?

11 A | can see one of the women, but | can't think of

12 her name, but | can remember Peter Isley. Those

13 two.

14 Q Did you consider as Archbishop the Dallas Charter
15 adopted by the Catholic Conference to be

16 mandatory or discretionary?

17 A | considered it to be mandatory. What it was

18 conicaly, | don't know, but | sure considered it

19 mandatory. Why do you laugh?

20 MR. LO COCO: Just because Jeff laughed
21 ait.

22 THEWITNESS: Can | ask questions?

23 MR. LO COCO: No.

24 MR. ANDERSON: You can answer that
25 question.

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 23



00023
1 MR. LO COCO: | wasjust afraid you were

2 going to be acanon lawyer for a second.

3 THE WITNESS: No, no, you don't have to
4 worry about that.

5 BY MR. ANDERSON:

6 Q Archbishop, asyou have clearly stated, there was
7 in 2002 avery public crisis around sexual abuse

8 that you had to in some part deal with in St.

9 Louis, but as you came on in Milwaukee it

10 redly -- in 2002 really kind of cameto the fore

11 of the public, correct?

12 A Correct.

13 Q And asyou made acommitment to the Charter and
14 to the community of faith to deal with this, what
15 guidelines or authorities did you rely upon to

16 deal with that crisis?

17 A Um-hum, sure.

18 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form.

19 BY MR. ANDERSON:

20 Q W, let me, just for example, you are familiar
21 with the Canon Law, correct?

22 A Sure

23 Q And, | mean, | know you have been trained in
24 Rome, but | don't think you are a Canon lawyer,

25 per sg, correct?
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1 A | wouldn't be considered a Canon lawyer, no.

2 Q Buttel me, if you would, then, how the Canon
3 Law dictated to you as the Archbishop how you

4 wereto dea with allegations of sexual abuse by

5 clerics.

6 A Sure. | could get to that if you would allow me
7 to make awider observation, but tell meif I'm

8 getting off the subject. Canon Law wouldn't have
9 been one of the priorities in telling me how to

10 ded with it. 1t would be one, and | will be to

11 getto that in aminute. Areyou interested in

12 the others or do you just --

13 Q No, I'minterested in really having you tell me
14 first as briefly as you can redly what the

15 guidelines and/or dictates were to help you

16 addressthecrisis.

17 A Sure.

18 Q And then we can break it down, if necessary.
19 A Sure, sure. All right. Because Canon Law would
20 be part of the conversation, but it certainly --

21 certainly would not have been the exclusive one.
22 For one, | would like to think that there was

23 just an elementary sense of justice and right and
24 wrong that here you have atragicaly significant

25 group of people that were viciously hurt by
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1 peoplewho dared to say that they were

2 representing the church and the Lord. So

3 justice, 1'd like to think an innate sense of

4 right and wrong and just ordinary human decency
5 would say to me, "Dolan, you need to do something
6 about this."

7 Number two would have been the specifics
8 of the Dallas Charter which | think in avery

9 compelling way gave some body and some direction
10 to number one.

1 Number three | would say would be just

12 Catholic mora theology, Catholic moral

13 principles, Catholic thinking that would say that
14 wewould have a particular solicitude for the

15 innocent and the young and those who have been
16 hurt. So there would be some. And then there
17 would come in the -- then there would come in
18 Canon Law.

19 Now Canon Law, you aready let me off

20 the hook because I'm not a Canon lawyer, but

21 Canon law would have reminded me of the

22 obligationsthat | have as the pastor of the

23 Diocese to the souls of my people, and the souls
24 of my people when | got to the Archdiocese of

25 Milwaukee were hurting. The souls of some people
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1 who had been damaged in a nauseating way when

2 they were young people, they were hurting, their
3 parents were hurting, the parishes were hurting.

4 So Canon law -- | mean, most of the time
5 wethink Canon law, | guess like you all do about
6 civil law, iswhat it tells you not to do, but

7 Canon Law itself had some extraordinarily noble
8 goas and principles that would say a Bishop

9 needs to be a shepherd to his people, and when
10 those people are hurting, you try to do something
11 about it.

12 Canon Law would also remind me that

13 people had certain rights, that those people had
14 rights to be heard by the church and they had

15 rights to decent, virtuous priests. Then Canon
16 Law would also have something to say about the
17 priests. The priests need to be held to the

18 highest moral code and that they, too, had

19 certain rights. So isthat what you had in mind
20 in asking it?

21 Q | think so, Cardinal, and let's break afew of
22 those things down, first the Canon Law. As
23 Archbishop, as an Ordinary, did you consider that
24 then to be discretionary in its application by

25 you or mandatory?
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1 A No, it would be mandatory. Obviously, there's

2 providential judgment, as with any law, but, no,

3 Canon Law isn't something you can say, "Oh, |

4 don't want to obey it. You've got to."

5 Q When you refer to the sense of justice that you
6 used as aguideline and a sense of right and

7 wrong, | think istheway | wrote it down, did

8 you become aware that the statute of limitations

9 in civil law offended your sense of justice?

10 A | was aware of the statute of limitations. |

11 would not say it offended my sense of justice.

12 Q Did you believe that the assertion of the statute
13 of limitations by the Archdiocese of Milwaukeein
14 defense of claims made against it was a just

15 assertion?

16 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. I'm

17 going to instruct you not to answer that to the

18 extent that it getsinto conversations that you

19 undoubtedly had with counsel for the Archdiocese
20 regarding these issues, and Cardinal Dolan is not
21 acivil lawyer, either, so | think it's an unfair

22 question. Now I'm going to let Kathy reread the
23 question. If you have an answer beyond my

24 redtrictions, you can giveit, but otherwise

25 don't.
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1 MR. ANDERSON: In other words, he

2 doesn't want -- | don't want to know what you

3 talked about with your lawyers, so take that out

4 of the answer and then we will read the question
5 back.

6 COURT REPORTER: "Did you believe that
7 the assertion of the statute of limitations by

8 the Archdiocese of Milwaukee in defense of claims
9 made against it was a just assertion?”

10 THEWITNESS: Yes.

11 BY MR. ANDERSON:

12 Q Why do you believe that to be use?

13 MR. LO COCO: I'm sorry. | missed that.
14 BY MR. ANDERSON:

15 Q Why do you believe that to be just?

16 A Mysdf and people wiser than me have told me that
17 the statute of limitationsis an established norm
18 of thelaw as we haveit, that it's intended to

19 protect the innocent, and not to tamper with it

20 would be perilousto the judicial sense of equity
21 asweknow it.

22 Q Areyou aware that representatives of the

23 Archdiocese and/or yourself resisted reforms of
24 the statute of limitations in Wisconsin in the

25 legidature?
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1 MR. LO COCO: I'm going to object to the

2 form of the question. We are getting way beyond
3 what | understood the purpose of this deposition

4 weas.

5 MR. ANDERSON: What's your legal

6 objection?

7 MR. LO COCO: We're either going to have
8 aconversation about it or I'm going to instruct

9 Cardina Dolan not to answer the question. So

10 it'syour choice, Jeff.

1 MR. ANDERSON: W, you know, for time
12 we'd liketo have alega objection, if you have

13 one.

14 MR. LO COCO: W, the legal objection
15 isit's beyond the scope of what was agreed to

16 and what | was informed about regarding Cardinal
17 Dolan's deposition.

18 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Let'shavea

19 discussion.

20 MR. LO COCO: So we're not going --

21 MR. ANDERSON: Let's have adiscussion

22 then about parameters.

23 MR. LO COCO: Sure.
24 MR. ANDERSON: The question was was --
25 THE WITNESS: Can I go to the bathroom
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1 while you guys are discussing this?

2 MR. ANDERSON: | think you have to stay
3 whilewe do thisone. Do you want to take a

4 break and go to the bathroom?

5 THE WITNESS: No, it's not urgent.

6 MR. ANDERSON: The question was what
7 guided you and one of the things was Canon Law
8 and the second one was a sense of justice. I'm

9 talking now about the sense of justice and how he
10 dedlt with or chose to deal with or not deal with
11 certain things. | think it is within the

12 purview.

13 MR. LO COCO: Well, we're here doing

14 discovery on the claims of A-12 and A-13.

15 Neither of those abuse survivors Cardina Dolan
16 knew, and I'm sure he will confirm that. My

17 understanding was that the focus of this

18 deposition was Cardina Dolan's decision when
19 Archbishop of Milwaukee to publicize the list of
20 priests against whom there had been substantiated
21 allegations, not -- And | understand there's some
22 broadness that has to attend that, but | don't

23 think getting into his persona views about civil
24 law, windows legislation or anything else comes

25 closeto that topic.
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1 MR. ANDERSON: The statute of

2 limitations is an issue that's been asserted here

3 by the Archdiocese, and so it is the subject of

4 theinquiry and thisis apart of that subject.

5 So weve both made our positions stated here, so

6 having donethat, if you want to let him answer

7 the question, | think it's probative. If you

8 chooseto instruct him, do so.

9 MR. LO COCO: One more point for Judge
10 Kelley. A-12isan abuse survivor who was abused
11 between '72 and '74, and A-13 was someone abused
12 by achoir director from 1977 to 1981 long before
13 Cardinal Dolan was in the Archdiocese of

14 Milwaukee, and the assertions that are being made
15 within the Chapter 11 right now with regard to

16 A-12 and A-13, who didn't make claims

17 pre-petition, are not assertions being put

18 forward by Cardinal Dolan. Because of all of

19 that, I'm going to instruct Cardinal Dolan not to
20 answer that question and we're going to move on.
21 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Cardinal, should
22 wetake abresk for the bathroom?

23 THE WITNESS: | was going to take

24 advantage of this one, but we can go another 10

25 or 15 minutes.
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1 MR. ANDERSON: You just make the call

2 whenever you are ready.

3 THEWITNESS: Thanks.

4 BY MR. ANDERSON:

5 Q One of the other criterion that you mentioned for
6 handling sexual abuse within the Archdiocese of
7 Milwaukee is you mentioned Catholic and moral
8 theology. That, of course, encompasses alarge
9 and broad range of thingsthat | don't think

10 requires alot of analysis asit's well-known and
11 certainly studied by you. But the next thing you
12 mentioned was the obligations of a pastor to the
13 people of the Diocese. When you say "a pastor,”
14 that aso refersto you being kind of a shepherd,
15 aswsdll, correct?

16 A You gotit. Pastor isthe Latin word for

17 shepherd, yes.

18 Q When it comesto the obligations you have
19 referred to as the shepherd of the flock or the
20 pastor to the Diocese, isthat to the entire

21 community of faith in the Diocese?

22 A Sure, and even those without.

23 Q Were any additiona or new policies implemented
24 by you pertaining to sexua abuse that had not

25 aready been implemented by your predecessors and
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1 asaresult of the Dallas Charter while you were

2 Archbishop?

3 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. It's

4 been answered. | don't know if it's been asked

5 that way, but do you mean in addition to what

6 he'saready said?

7 MR. ANDERSON: Yes, any policies.

8 THE WITNESS: Not that | can recall.

9 BY MR. ANDERSON:

10 Q At some point, Cardinal, we are informed and it
11 iswell-known that alist of accused or

12 substantiated allegations against clerics was

13 published by the Archdiocese of Milwaukee,

14 correct?

15 A Yes, sir.

16 Q And that was done on your watch, correct?
17 A Yes.

18 Q Isitaso correct to say that consideration of
19 that decision preceded your installation as

20 Archbishop? In other words, your predecessors
21 had started that process?

22 A You know, Mr. Anderson, | think that would have
23 been generically something alot of Bishops were
24 taking about. Whether or not my predecessor,
25 either as Archbishop or as Apostolic
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1 Administrator had done any formal consideration

2 of that, | don't know. | will tell you that when

3 | --when | said, "Let's talk about this," it was

4 not anew topic to them, but | don't know if

5 that's because it's something they had already

6 discussed alot or had considered doing or

7 whether it was just one of those things that a

8 lot of people in those days were discussing about
9 as yet something else the church might do in

10 response to what they were hearing from people
11 whom we respected who said, "This will help you
12 in your laudable attempt to reach out to victims,
13 to protect children and to repair the credibility
14 that you havelost." So, Lord knows, it was not
15 anovd topic, but | cannot recall if there was

16 anything aready precedent-wise that the

17 Archdiocese of Milwaukee had ready to go.

18 Q Do you recal when, Cardinal, you first raised
19 thetopic of the creation and publication of such
20 alist while Archbishop?

21 A | can't, but | will tell you this. My gut would
22 tell me -- And when my gut talks, | listen,

23 because it's rather substantial. My gut would

24 tell methat | can't take credit for it. My gut

25 seemsto prod my memory that that idea came from
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1 others, particularly from this Community Advisory

2 Board. Would you like me to talk more about

3 that?

4 Q No,lcan--1Ican--

5 A You have heard about that one?

6 Q | doknow about that and | will aso, to be fair
7 with you, there are some documents that | will be
8 showing you later on that demonstrate to us that

9 it was given consideration prior to your

10 installation, so your gut | think is correct.

11 A Okay.

12 Q Andisin conformity with the documents |

13 reviewed.

14 A Oh, good.

15 Q Soitlooks like they were working on that, then
16 you got installed and then later --

17 A Then it came about again.

18 Q Thenyouraisedit. So --

19 A Yes, and | can remember.

20 Q | have-- You haveto wait for aquestion here.
21 A Sure, sure.

22 Q That'stheway wedo it here. Haveyou had a
23 chanceto review anything in preparation for your
24 deposition today, any documents or anything like
25 that?
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1 A No documents, no.

2 Q Other than talking with counsdl, have you

3 consulted with anything else about it or done

4 anythingin preparation for it? | don't want to

5 know about what you talked to counsel about.

6 A Except for Frank and me chatting yesterday, |
7 haven't done any study or preparation.

8 Q | will show you some of those things and those
9 documents and that will kind of peg some of the
10 events.

11 A Sure

12 Q Atonepointintimethereview of the documents
13 seemsto indicate to me or to us that adecision

14 was madeto release alist of substantiated

15 dlegations against priests, and then at some

16 point in time you may have reversed that. Do you
17 recall anything like that?

18 A | couldn't recall the actual facts, but | would
19 not be at all embarrassed to admit that | can

20 remember there was alot of back and forth and
21 that in my own mind | went back and forth. In
22 consulting people, in listening, there would be

23 oneday that | would say, "Thisisthething to

24 do." Somebody would say, "Here's the pluses and

25 minuses, and | said, "Well, let's hold off for
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1 awhile Boy, | wouldn't hide the fact that it

2 was atough decision and that in my own mind |

3 found myself going back and forth.

4 Q And maybe you could elaborate on the tensions
5 that you were feeling in your own mind on whether
6 or not you should release such alist to the

7 public.

8 A Sure, sure. So you mean like the pros and cons
9 in my own mind?

10 Q Yes, thetensions that you felt or the conflict

11 you experienced around that decision.

12 A Sure. Theproswerethat | was hearing arather
13 unanimous chorus from the victims advocacy

14 community, whom | had cometo trust even though
15 they were sometimes very neuragic meetings who
16 wererather -- rather unanimous, | say "rather,"

17 | put the adverb in there because | can remember
18 one or two very aggressive victim defenders who
19 felt that it would be not the thing to do. But

20 in generd it seemed pretty clear that the

21 victims advocacy community was encouraging me to
22 dothisasastep in theright direction. So

23 that was one thing in my mind.

24 A second pro was that it made sense. It

25 made sense from a protection of youth point of
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1 view that if these were -- if these were men whom

2 wewere convinced and that we had proof that they
3 wereno longer, thank God, exercising the

4 priesthood and being removed from the priesthood,
5 were, obvioudly, still alive, and even though we

6 had gone through rather dramatic stepsto see as

7 far asnotification of police and public

8 natification of thisfact of these people, that

9 if we could put out alist, that would be good.

10 | mean, if this particular man waslivingin an

11 apartment building, again, even though we had

12 notified the police and put the blurbsin the

13 Sunday bulletin in the parishes there, that that

14 could be another step in the protection of

15 children.

16 Another pro was that when people said to
17 me-- they would say to me, "Dolan, you keep

18 saying you want other victims to come forward."
19 There might be people out there whose memory --
20 or that they kind of know it, but they are

21 embarrassed to come forward, and if they see,

22 indeed, this man has been -- there was an

23 allegation that was substantiated, they might

24 then have the freedom to come forward, which

25 could be amazingly therapeutic and cleansing. So
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1 those were pros that were there. Did you want

2 the cons, too?

3 Q Sure

4 A Theconswerethat, first of all, people said no
5 matter how hard you try and no matter how

6 scrupulous you arein composing this list,

7 there's still going to be people that are

8 unhappy, because then they will say, "You left

9 this one off or that one off," even though the

10 alegations were not substantiated. So that you

11 would reopen some wounds in people who still feel
12 that father so and so abused them, and even

13 though that went through the law and went through
14 theinvestigation and went through the Review

15 Board and was not shown to be substantiated, they
16 believeit was, and if they are not on the list,

17 they are going to berehurt. So that was another
18 reason not to.

19 | have to be honest with you to say |

20 was worried about priestly morale and the morale
21 of the people. | thought, good God in heaven,

22 all they do is every day hear bad news about the
23 church. We are beginning to make some progress,
24 we are beginning to make some healing here, and

25 now I'm going to publish thislist again and it's
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1 going to tear open the scab and priests are going

2 to say that these Bishops are using -- trying to

3 regain their credibility by hanging priests out,

4 and those were the negatives about it.

5 Listen, then, too, other people would

6 say, you know, if you publish the names of these
7 priests, there are going to be some of these

8 priests that are going to sue you, and there's

9 going to be some victims who are going to say,

10 and there were, as a matter of fact, some victims
11 who said, "Please don't publicize the list,

12 because so far | have been anonymous, but if my
13 family seesfather so and so, they are going to

14 know this, that he's the one that abused me." |
15 didn't claim to understand al of that, but that

16 wasthe pros and cons that | was hearing.

17 Q When the decision was made to publish the lit,
18 it's correct to say that the list was limited to

19 the names of those priests whose -- against whom
20 substantiated alegations had been made and their
21 current status was what was published, correct?
22 A Thelist was of, yes, here are the priests

23 against whom there has been a substantiated

24 allegation of sexua abuse of minors, and then

25 their canonical status. | can't remember, to be
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1 honest with you, what else was on it.

2 Q Okay. Itiscorrectto say that there was no

3 information given at the time the list was

4 published about what was actually known about

5 that particular priest or any priest on that

6 Archdiocese and when it was known and where they
7 had offended and anything like that, correct?

8 A | can'tremember. | think literally it was just

9 alist, so | don't think there were paragraphs

10 and descriptions. That having been said, most of
11 that had been put out anyway, because it was

12 dready the protocol of the Archdiocese that once
13 acasewas resolved, that was published, and so

14 there was some publicity given to that, but |

15 don't think that that was part of the list.

16 Q You say that the policy of the Archdiocese was
17 once acase was resolved to publish it, it's

18 correct to say that it was the policy of the

19 Archdiocese to publish that a priest had been

20 removed or had been credibly accused, but nothing
21 more about the priest's history in terms of what

22 the Archdiocese knew and when they knew it?

23 A You mean before | got there or --

24 Q Whileyou werethere.

25 A Boy, | don't know. | can remember going to a
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1 parish, for instance, when | had to remove a

2 priest and telling the people to their face. |

3 sad, "You need to hear this bad news from me."
4 |t was not an accusation that it happened at the
5 parish. Again, it was from along time before.
6 | can remember the priest's assignment

7 history being published. Whether that was an
8 isolated case or not or whether that was policy,
9 I don't know. | can't remember.

10 Q Who wasthat, Cardina?

11 A Do you know who that was? Can | ask?
12 Q No. If you remember.

13 A | canseetheguy and | can't remember his name.

14 MR. LO COCO: Do you mind if he asks at
15 the break?
16 MR. ANDERSON: No, | don't mind if

17 something refreshes your memory, but right now

18 what we're trying to do is get what you do

19 remember.

20 MR. LO COCO: Got it.

21 THEWITNESS: Sure.

22 MR. ANDERSON: Fair to say.

23 MR. LO COCO: I'm good for abresk

24 whenever you hit agood spot.
25 MR. ANDERSON: In just amoment here.
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q Do you have any memory of any disclosure being
3 made to the Archdiocese as a matter of course or
4 policy about any of those priests on the list

5 that was published that pertained to the actual

6 history that was known to the Archdiocese about
7 each of those priests, when they had offended and
8 where they had offended or anything like that?

9 A Could I -- Could you be alittle more clear in
10 the question?

11 Q Sure. Wasany information as a matter of

12 protocol or practice disseminated pertaining to

13 thelist beyond the fact that the priest had a

14 substantiated allegation, his name and his

15 current status?

16 A Onthelist or in generd?

17 Q Onthelist.

18 A Onthelist | can't recall truthfully, although
19 my memory is it was the name.

20 Q Andthenin general --

21 A Butin generd, yes, | think therewas. 1 think,
22 for instance, in the whatever the name of the

23 newspaper was in the Archdiocese that when there
24 was apriest removed, there was an article about

25 him, about that sad fact and his biography.
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1 Q Wasthereadisclosure made by the Archdiocese of

2 theinformation that was contained in the

3 personnd files pertaining to allegations of

4 sexua abuse and the history?

5 A Wadl, there would have been adisclosureto law
6 enforcement people. They had complete accessto

7 thefiles. But you mean publicly?

8Q Yes

9 A You mean beyond the assignments?

10 Q Beyond the assignments, yes.

11 A No, | don't think so.

12 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Isthisagood

13 timeto take a break for you?

14 THEWITNESS: Surething.

15 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Let'sdoit.

16 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: We're now off the
17 record at approximately 2:34 with Videotape

18 No. 1.

19 (A recess was taken.)

20 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: ThisisTape2in
21 the deposition of Cardina Dolan. We're now on

22 therecord at approximately 2:45 p.m.

23 BY MR. ANDERSON:

24 Q What I'm going to be doing, Cardinal, is showing

25 you various documents that have been produced to
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1 usfrom thefiles of the Archdiocese.

2 A Good.
3 Q Andtomakeit aseasy for usasis possible,
4 we're using them as they have been produced and
5 what we call Bate stamped, and I'm showing you a
6 document for example in the lower, right-hand
7 corner.
8 A Thereitis, yes.
9 Q Doyousee--
10 A ADOM.
11 Q Archdiocese of Milwaukee, and then there'sa
12 number, and this particular oneis 121906. So
13 when I refer to this exhibit, I'm going to use
14 that number.
15 A Good. Okay.
16 Q Andinamoment | will show you thelist that has
17 been published and is reported to have been
18 published in July of 2004 that now was taken off
19 the website in 2008. But for the moment | am
20 showing you this exhibit, and it was produced to
21 usfrom thefiles, and it pertainsto it looks
22 like some work being done concerning a number of
23 priests and allegations of sexual abuse of minors
24 and whether it's substantiated in the year 2002,
25 October of that year.
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1 I guess I'm showing you this to kind of

2 bring you back to that point in time first to see

3 what your memory is about kind of what was going
4 on at that time as you recall it in determining

5 whether or not to publish and disclose or not

6 and, if so, what was to be disclosed publicly.

7 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form of the

8 question. Theresalong preceto it. | mean,

9 what | took it to be was what was going on in

10 October of 2002 regarding the issue of publishing
11 thelist. Isthat the question?

12 MR. ANDERSON: Wl | guess I'm trying
13 to bring him back. He hasn't looked at the

14 document so --

15 MR. LO COCO: | don't even know if he's
16 ever seen thisdocument. | mean, you haven't

17 asked that. Anyway, my objectionisit'san

18 ambiguous and vague question.

19 BY MR. ANDERSON:

20 Q Okay. Let meask you this. In 2002, in the fall
21 of 2002, October and thereabouts, do you remember
22 what you and the Archdiocese was doing pertaining
23 to theformulation of alist and what to do with

24 it?

25 A Yeah
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1 Q What do you remember about that?

2 A You are asking me, Mr. Anderson, still just about
3 that list?

4Q Yes

5 A 1 don't think we would have spoken about the list
6 that early. If | recall correctly, | don't think

7 that was an immediate thing. |1 might be putting

8 my foot in my mouth because you might be showing
9 me something later, but right now as I'm thinking

10 in those opening months, | don't think publishing
11 alist was one of the burning issues. That would

12 comeup later. So | don't know of alist like

13 this. That'stheright date on the top, so this

14 would have been October 18, '02. Am | correctin
15 thinking -- Well, you are supposed to be asking

16 the questions, not me, but | presume the reason

17 for your question would be would this have been
18 part of our research in preparation for the

19 release of alist. | doubt if that werethe

20 case.

21 Q Looking at this exhibit, obviously there's

22 typewritten portions that identify names of

23 priests, assignments, years, substantiated, et

24 cetera, and then there are handwritten notes in

25 the left-hand side in somebody's hand. Areyou
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1 ableto recognize whose that -- whose writing

2 thatis?

3 A | can recognizeit's not mine, but | cannot

4 recognize whoseit is.

5 Q Okay. And asyou look at this particular

6 exhibit, isit onethat isfamiliar to you at all

7 as having been created and/or reviewed by you or
8 anybody at your direction in or around October of
9 '02?

10 A Whether | saw this exact list, | don't know, but
11 thiswould be the kind of list. Remember, | told
12 you when | first got there, | said, "You all need

13 to assure me," and this would have been the kind
14 of list that | could have recalled looking at

15 when they said, "Here's the history, here's the

16 guys that we had worried about, and here'sthe

17 disposition." Thiswould have been the kind of
18 thing that, as sickening as it was, that | would

19 havelooked at, yes.

20 Q Inafew momentsI'm going to show you the list

21 that actually got published, but on the first

22 page of this exhibit the name _
23 | wvpeors -

24 A Um-hum.

25 Q -- onthisexhibit. Do you seethat name asthe
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1 second one?

2 A Yes

3 Q Hisnameisnot on the list that ultimately was
4 published as we have reviewed it. Do you know or
5 remember why that would have been omitted from
6 the published list in 2004?

7 A No, | don't know if it was omitted or not. |

8 trust you on that that it was. Why it was, if it

9 were omitted, | would not know why.

10 Q Okay.

11 A | can remember that one of the debates --

12 Remember when | said there was alot of give and
13 take and going back and forth on all sides, pro

14 and con? One of the debates was even among those
15 that said, "Okay, you should put out alist," but

16 then part of that subset was "but you shouldn't

17 havethe deceased on it." So that was yet

18 another discussion even complicated further.

19 Q And | think on the right-hand column this

20 reflectsthat _Was deceased. Do you
21 seethat?

22 A Yes, that's what prompted my memory. If he
23 weren't on it, maybe that's why.

24 Q Let'slook at thethird page of this exhibit

25 which is marked 121908, directing your attention
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1 toit, and the first name on that page is

2 [N

3 A Um-hum.

4 Q Our comparison reflects that this name did not
5 appear on the published list.

6 A Um-hum.

7 Q Do you have any personal knowledge or memory as
8 to why that is s0?

9 A No.

10 MR. LO COCO: Whileyou are between
11 questions, | appreciate that we are not marking
12 exhibits at this deposition, we are just using

13 Bates labels because it helps to uncomplicate the
14 record later. Thisis one of the reasons why

15 this needs to remain under seal, because there
16 are, as Mike and | know, there are names on the
17 list of people -- on thislist in particular of

18 people that may not have even had allegations
19 against them regarding sexual abuse of minors,
20 and in fairness and in justice to them, we need
21 to make sure we are careful with the record.

22 Thank you.

23 MR. ANDERSON: WelI, asto the

24 deposition and the seal issue, that is and can

25 and will be corrected when the opportunity is
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1 given, as has been the case with every deposition

2 and every disclosure. So it will always be our

3 intent to abide by the necessary redactionsin

4 accord with any court order and protocol, but --

5 MR. LO COCO: And | appreciate that.

6 THE WITNESS: At best were sending more

7 information than may be necessary later.

8 MR. LO COCQO: | appreciate that. |

9 think it's dways helpful to make surethat'sin

10 therecord of any deposition we engage in.

11 BY MR. ANDERSON:

12 Q Do you remember, Cardinal, the priests whose name
13 isonthetop of thisthird page, _’?

14 A Boy, | can remember the name. | can't remember
15 dl the details.

16 Q Do you remember an alegation was made against
17 him --

18 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. You

19 can answer, if you can.

20 MR. ANDERSON: -- of sexual abuse?

21 THEWITNESS: You mean do | remember the
22 alegation that was made?

23 BY MR. ANDERSON:

24 Q Theallegation.

25 A No. He'sjust one of those namesthat is part of
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1 sad memories. Thisisbringing back names of

2 people that we spoke about. Whether there was an

3 dlegation, whether it was substantiated or not,

4 | don't know.

5 Q Okay. The next page marked 121909, two-thirds
6 down on that page, Cardinal, you will seethe

7 name _ Do you know that

8 name?

9 A That would be anamethat | cannot recall seeing
10 before.

11 Q And our comparison of thelist that was published
12 and this document reflects that it is not aname

13 that was on the published list. Do you have any

14 memory asto why that is so?

15 A No.

16 Q Directing your attention to what would be about
17 thefifth page in this document, Exhibit 121911,

18 do you have that before you, Cardina?

19 A Sure, um-hum.

20 Q At thebottom of it there are two names,

21 |, ond thelast
22 name NN Our comparisons

23 reflect that these are not names published on the
24 list.
25 A Um-hum.
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1 Q Do you have any persona knowledge or memory as

2 towhy that is s0?

3 A No, no.

4 Q I'm showing you another exhibit.

5 A Arewedone with this one?

6 Q Yes. You can put that one right next to you
7 because they are similar. And thisis

8 essentidly -- Thisis Exhibit 121885, Cardinal,

9 and you will seethat it is essentially the same

10 document, at least the typewritten portions, but
11 now there's notations in the right-hand column in
12 ahandwriting.

13 A Yes

14 Q And at thetop on thefirst page you see zero
15 equals known. Now when you look at this one,
16 it's dated 10/31/02, so it's close in time to the

17 last exhibit, but it also has adate in the

18 handwriting of 8/22/03. Do you see that

19 handwritten date?

20 A Where?

21 Q 8/22/03 right to the right of 10/31/02.

22 A Yes, yesh.

23 Q Whose handwriting isthat? Can you look at that
24 and identify it?

25 A Icanlook atit, but | can't identify it.
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1 Q When you look at these two exhibits, are they

2 familiar to you as being working drafts of what

3 to release and what not to release being

4 circulated among the -- your office internally?

5 A Torecal what | said previously, this would be
6 thekind of working list that | can recall using

7 in my attempt upon arrival to learn the status of

8 prieststhat had -- that we have abad history

9 of. Whether to jump then to say is this the kind
10 of list we used in compiling the list about which
11 you are speaking, that | don't know.

12 Q I'mgoing to direct your attention to the last
13 page of this exhibit, Cardinal, and on that last

14 page there's additiona handwriting.

15 A Um-hum.

16 Q And thereisthe name -With Fiorenza. Do
17 you know that name?

18 A Fiorenza?

19 Q Yes.

20 A 1do.

21 Q Whoisthat?

22 A Judge Fiorenzawas an ex-judge that we counted
23 upon to do investigations of casesthat -- in a

24 further attempt to substantiate. So, in other

25 words, even if the law enforcement people said,
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1 "There's not enough here," or "We don't think he

2 did it," that still wasn't enough for us and that

3 wasn't enough for the Review Board. So we had an
4 interna person, namely Judge Fiorenza, who then

5 would do his research and bring the data to the

6 Review Board.

7 Q When was Judge Fiorenza employed by the

8 Archdiocese as a part of the process? Was that

9 during your watch or your predecessor's?

10 A No, | would have inherited him. He would have
11 been onboard when | got there.

12 Q Thenext nameis_ Do you know
13 that name?

14 A | do know that name. | mean, the name -- | can't
15 recdll the case. By the way, | think he called

16 it [l

17 Q Okay.

18 A So, yes, | do recognize the name, but | do not

19 recall the details of the case.

20 Q Then beneath that in handwriting to the right of

21 8/22/03 there are three names, _

ey

23 A Um-hum.

24 Q Arethey dl former priests now deceased of the

25 Archdiocese?
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1 A You know, those would be priests that | cannot

2 recall. Thosewould be new onesto me. | guess,

3 | mean, | saw them back in 2002, but | don't have

4 aworking memory of those.

5 Q Do you remember that a decision was made to not
6 put deceased priests against whom allegations had

7 been substantiated, to not put them on the list?

8 A On the published list, you mean?

9Q VYes

10 A | can'trecal. | can remember it being a

11 controversia decision. | can't recall which

12 side we came down on.

13 Q Here'sthe same document in typewritten fashion,
14 but it's got some additional handwriting on it,

15 and it's marked 056213. Do you seethe

16 handwriting on the right-hand side?

17 A | do. "Dolan will decide whether this goes to

18 CDE." Um-hum.

19 Q Yes. And CDF refersto the Congregation of the
20 Doctrine of the Faith at the Vatican, correct?

21 A Yes

22 Q What you do haveto do, Cardinal, is make sure we
23 don't talk over one another.

24 A I'msorry. Thanks.

25 Q | will remind you and you can remind me, if | do

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 57



00057
1 the same.

2 A Surething. Sure.

3 Q Tél meabout that. What decides whether -- What
4 criterion did you use to determine whether or not
5 thislist or any information on it goes to the

6 CDF?

7 A Good question. Keep in mind there were two
8 things that we had to -- there were two decisions
9 we had to make, al right, and the first one was
10 pivotal. Thefirst one waswhether or not the

11 guy staysin ministry. That was my decision or
12 my predecessor's that one no longer makes on his
13 own. One makesit after referring to the law.

14 One makesit after an internal investigation, and
15 one makes it after resolution by the Independent
16 Review Board.

17 Then my decision would be this man is

18 out of the priesthood. He can no longer publicly
19 practice hisministry. That's adecision every

20 Bishop makes. So that's the first and most

21 important, because that's what we have to do.

22 That's the promise we made to our people, this
23 guy isout. He cannot publicly represent himself
24 asapriest, he can't dressas apriest and he

25 can't publicly celebrate the sacraments.
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1 Here's the second level. What do we do

2 with him canonically. By Canon Law what do we
3 do. Now that'skind of adecision | can't make.

4 | can't remove his priesthood. | can remove the

5 practice of it, but | can't remove his identity.

6 The Holy See can, Rome can, okay? So then | had
7 to decide, and that -- | hope you understand that

8 first one was the biggy, hesout. Okay. Now

9 internaly what are we going to do with this guy,
10 and there's a number of things you could do.

1 By the way, that's been refined since

12 I'veleft Milwaukee, as you probably know, but
13 back then you could do a number of things. You
14 could ask the Holy See, the Vatican, to take the

15 man's priesthood away. You could do that, and we
16 did on some.

17 Q Involuntary remova from the holy state?

18 A Yes, or return to the lay state. That can be

19 voluntary or involuntary, and we did that, okay,
20 but I couldn't do that, only Rome could. So

21 that's adecision you want to make, or you might
22 say, especially with aguy that's old and sick,

23 you might say that he lives alife of prayer and

24 penance. Namely, while he has got his priesthood

25 internally, he can never exerciseit. That'sa
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1 decision | can't make, ether.

2 So most of the time you would have to

3 say, "Whew, thank God we got him out of the

4 priesthood, but now we have to decide what to do
5 with him internally canonically. That's when you
6 would go to Rome. Now sometimes -- Since then
7 now you just refer it to Rome and they kind of

8 tell you this guy needsto get out, we will take

9 the priesthood away, or they might say, "Let's

10 have acanonical trial to decide what to do with
11 him," or they might say, "He's 90-years-old, let

12 him live alife of prayer and penance."

13 I'm presuming that notation meant that

14 Dolan as the Archbishop was going to have to

15 decideif he's going take thisto Rome, and the

16 competency then was under CDF, Congregation of
17 the Doctrine of Faith. It wasn't always so, but

18 it became that, and that what he's going to ask

19 for. | guessthat's what it meant.

20 Keep in mind -- You probably know now, |
21 might be saying too much, now we don't have that
22 discretion. They al haveto be reported to

23 Rome. They al haveto be reported to Rome. |
24 don't think that was the case back then.

25 Q When wasthat decision made or edict by Rometo

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 60



00060
1 require reporting to them?

2 A That they al had to go? Can't remember.

3 Q Wasthat when then Cardina Ratzinger was the

4 head of the CDF?

5 A Thiswould have been, if it were '02.

6 Q No, the mandatory report to Rome.

7 A That might have been part of the tightening up by
8 the Holy See.

9 Q Under John Paul?

10 A Under either one, | don't know who, that it's not
11 up to you to decide whether or not you want to

12 report it to Rome. You got to.

13 Q Sosimply stated, and correct meif I'm wrong, as
14 an Ordinary Archbishop you would have the power
15 to remove the priest and his faculties from

16 ministry, correct?

17 A Um-hum, um-hum.

18 Q Yes?

19 A Yes. I'msorry. Yes.

20 Q And you would aso have the power to petition his
21 remova to Rome from the clerical state?

22 A Yes

23 Q Butyou did not have the power to remove him from
24 theclerica state? That vested exclusively

25 under Canon Law with the Pope?
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1 A With the Apostolic See, right, right, correct.

2 Q Cadind, I'm showing you another exhibit. This
3 oneis marked 121870, typewritten, two pages and
4 titled "Priests Accused of Sexua Abuse Involving
5 Minorssince 1926." Isit your memory that under
6 the Charter the Bishops concluded that they were
7 going to try to assemble such alist of priests

8 that went back asfar as that that had been

9 accused?

10 A | can'trecall of the Bishops corporately

11 deciding that. | do know the only thing -- This
12 kind of document | cannot recall ever seeing.

13 Theonly thing I can speculate, if that's --

14 MR. LO COCO: | don't want you to

15 speculate. Sorry.

16 THEWITNESS: Okay. Sure.

17 BY MR. ANDERSON:

18 Q W, let me ask you this. When welook at this
19 there are anumber of --

20 THE WITNESS: I'm not used to people

21 telling methat.

22 MR. LO COCO: | bet you arenot, and I'm
23 not used to telling somebody like you what to do.
24 THEWITNESS: | wish | had it more

25 often.
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1 Q Wedl, when welook at this you can see that there

2 ispriests who are accused of sexual abuse and

3 then theresfirst the deceased category. Do you
4 seethat?

5 A Yes, | do.

6 Q And [ isin there, and I think that's
7 one of the names | pointed out before.

8 A | remember that. | remember you pointing it out,
9 yeah.

10 Q And the next category isArchdioceseis

11 requesting administrative laicization by the Holy
12 Father.

13 A Okay.

14 Q And that's what we were just talking about?
15 A Yes

16 Q Correct?

17 A Yes.

18 Q And then the next category is Archdioceseis
19 requesting an indefinite administrative precept
20 which restricts al ability to function as a

21 priest, including ministry, presentation,

22 identification and clothing. This request takes
23 into account the physical or age-related

24 limitations of the offender. Does that category

25 require action by the Holy Father's office or
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1 not?

2 A Let meread that again, if you don't mind.

3 MR. LO COCO: I'm sorry. Which

4 paragraph?

5 THEWITNESS: It'sthethird one.

6 MR. ANDERSON: Thelong one.

7 MR. LO COCO: Oh, theindefinite. Got

8 it. Thank you.

9 THE WITNESS: The only thing that has me

10 hung up isthat last sentence. No, | would not
11 think this would require permission by the Holy
12 See. | think the Archdiocese and indefinite

13 administrative precept, which restricts all

14 ability to function as a priest, including

15 ministry, presentation, identification and

16 clothing, | would not think that requires the

17 permission of the Holy See.

18 Q Okay. The next category is Archdioceseis
19 requesting a pend trial be held in cases being
20 sent to Congregation for the Doctrine of the

21 Faith for further instruction. Thiswould be a
22 category where the Holy See and the office that
23 ishandling it has jurisdiction, correct?

24 A If | understand it. | don't know the answer to

25 that. My understanding of a penal tria --

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 64



00064
1 Remember | told you before like in substantiation

2 one of the usual waysis a priest admitsit, and

3 inmy years, in the early years, tragically most

4 did. | mean, it's good they admitted it, praise

5 God for their honesty, but most of them admitted
6 it. Therewould be somethat would say, "I

7 didn't do this," and so in those occasions the

8 Holy See would say, "Okay, well, we better have a
9 canonical trial." So | presume that's what that

10 is.

11 Q Thenext category states, "Left active ministry
12 or voluntarily sought laicization prior to 2002,"
13 and in the right-hand side there's aname-
_, and under it theresa
15 handwritten notation. | read it to say, "No

16 accusation (concerns of behavior)." | don't know
17 if that's correct, but do you know anything about
18 this [N

19 A No, | don't. Thatisanamel cannot recall.
20 What's the date on this? We don't know, huh?

21 Q Asproduced | don't haveit, but if you look at
22 the second page at the bottom there, it says that
23 it'supdated February 17, 2004.

24 A | seeit there, um-hum.

25 Q Sothat isour best estimate of the date.
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1 A | would have been there then.

2 Q Onthesecond pageit lists or categorizes

3 returned from District Attorney and awaiting

4 resolution by outside investigator. At that time

5 the District Attorney was Michagl McCann,

6 correct?

7 A Um-hum. I'm not sure.

8 Q Did you havedirect contact with him?

9 A | would have direct contact with Michael McCann
10 sometimes.

11 Q What wasthe nature and circumstances?

12 A But | would not speak to him about cases. |
13 would have contact with him socialy or in other
14 areas. For instance, | remember him giving an
15 excdlent lecture once on not this, but on other

16 matters. So contact about cases, no.

17 Q Did he-- AsaCatholic was heinvolved in
18 Archdiocesan affairs or activities with you or

19 the Archdiocese, to your knowledge?

20 A Wedl, hewas avery committed, faithful Catholic,
21 but | don't think he was involved in any Diocesan
22 organizations or any Diocesan service projects,
23 no.

24 Q Inthis category the name Martin Knighton,
25 K-N-1-G-H-T-O-N, appears?
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1A Yes Marvin.

2 Q Andthenit says, "Full restrictions,” but our
3 comparison to the list reflects that he is not on
4 the published list. Do you know why that is so,
5 Archbishop, or Cardina?

6 A No, I don't know.

7 Q Oh, here.

8 MR. LO COCO: Heis.

9 MR. ANDERSON: | misspoke. It's the guy
10 above him, _

1 THE WITNESS: , um-hum.

12 BY MR. ANDERSON:

13 Q Heisnot, I'm told, on that list as published.

14 Do you have knowledge of why that is so?

15 A No, | can remember _ but I would not
16 be able to enlighten you on why he was or wasn't

17 onthelist.

18 Q The next category is alegations without

19 substantiation, and do you have information as

20 you look at the names on this that allegations

21 were made pertaining to any of these identified

22 priests that were determined to be false?

23 A I'msorry. | wasdistricted by looking at the

24 list. Would you say the question again?

25 Q Sure. Do you know if when you look éat the -- the
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1 category of allegations without substantiation

2 and there's the number 11 behind it?

3 A Um-hum.

4 Q Do you know if it was determined by those in the
5 Archdiocese making such a determination that any
6 of the allegations made against any of these

7 priestsidentified were determined to be false?

8 A | don't know that. My presumption would be the
9 very title would say that, yes, they were shown

10 not to have been substantiated. Now keep in mind
11 my maor question at the time was two things. If
12 there was an alegation against aguy, did it go

13 to the police and did it go to the Review Board.

14 Those were the two things.

15 So if therewas not -- if therewas an

16 dlegation that is without substantiation, it --

17 in my memory those two -- Do you see the

18 Eisenberg Commission there? You know what that
19 is, right? That was like the first of what we

20 then called the Diocesan Review Board because it
21 was pre-Dallas. So actually the Archdiocese of

22 Milwaukee anticipated the reforms of Dallas and
23 had donethat. So | would simply say did the

24 police -- did this go to the DA and did this go

25 to the Review Board, and if it's not
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1 substantiated, the allegation must have been

2 fase.

3 Q Now thereisadifference, isthere not, between
4 an alegation of sexual abuse of a minor made

5 that's not substantiated versus an allegation

6 that isfase, isthere not?

7 A Probably, sure, um-hum.

8 Q Inonecaseit didn't happen and in the other

9 caseit just could not be established?

10 A | seewhat you mean. It could not be shown.
11 Right.

12 Q Andisit correctin your understanding of, you
13 know, the sexua abuse and how you develop

14 protocols within the Archdiocese that one way you
15 substantiate allegations made, if there is one

16 person reporting abuse, is to make the name known
17 to seeif there's other victims that corroborate

18 it or substantiate it, correct?

19 A That's correct, yes. That would have been one of
20 the argumentsfor thelist, yes.

21 Q And asit pertainsto the category of the 11

22 priests here, alegations without substantiation,

23 wouldn't it have been helpful to have made it

24 known that accusations had been made, but they

25 had yet to be substantiated to seeif there were
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1 others out there who had been abused and made

2 similar clams?

3 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form of the
4 question. If you understand it, you can give an

5 answer.

6 THE WITNESS: | would haveto say that

7 onewould have heard that argument. One would
8 aso have heard the argument that that would

9 irreparably damage the reputation of a priest

10 that didn't do it, so you would hear both.

11 BY MR. ANDERSON:

12 Q And one of the goalsthat | think you had

13 described before, Cardinal, and | would applaud
14 such agod isto get names out there so the

15 victims can come forward, correct?

16 A Correct.

17 Q To hold back these names against at least -- is
18 to redly not advance that goal, correct?

19 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. It's
20 argumentative, it's not afact question, but

21 subject to that, if you have an answer, you can
22 giveit.

23 THEWITNESS: | would, because that, you
24 know, one hears that a lot, but one has to recall

25 some of the nature of the allegations. If we get

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 70



00070
1 an dlegation against a priest from somebody that

2 says he got off aflying saucer and tried to

3 abuse aperson, we don't want to -- that would be
4 terribly unjust to publicize a priest's name

5 because an accusation like that comes in.

6 BY MR. ANDERSON:

7 Q You can easily discern that that would be afase
8 allegation, correct?

9 A Yeah

10 Q Okay. Butif somebody camein and said, "l was
11 abused as a 14-year-old by this priest,” and that

12 wasthe only person that had made that

13 dlegation, if you published that an allegation

14 had been made but yet to be substantiated is

15 different, isit not?

16 A Theresadifference between afase allegation
17 and a substantiated one.

18 Q Let'slook at this-- In thislist here of

19 dlegations without substantiation you will see

20 thefifth onedown is _’?
21 A Um-hum.

22 Q And his name was not placed along with these
23 otherson the list because the allegation that

24 had been made was not substantiated, correct?

25 A | can't remember the nature of the decision why
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1 it was-- why he was or was not left off.

2 Q Okay. Wel, I think it was described beneath it.

3 You can read it.

4 A Um-hum.

5 Q Thereisan account.

6 A No substantiation there, huh?

7Q Yes

8 A My presumption then would be if the rubric of the
9 list was those with substantiated allegations,

10 that would be the reason he would have been left

11 off.

12 Q Wereyou aware, Cardinal, that as Archbishop of
13 Milwaukee that a settlement had been made

14 pertaining to _before 2004?

15 MR. LO COCO: Objection, form,

16 foundation. That's afoundation question. If

17 you know, you can answer.

18 THEWITNESS: | can't recal.

19 BY MR. ANDERSON:

20 Q Do you recal having received information

21 directly or anybody under your control that -

22 had been known and reported to have been swimming
23 with youth and boys in the nude?

24 A | canrecal that, yes.

25 Q What do you remember about that and when such
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1 information came to your attention?

2 A | can remember -- | don't know how it came to my
3 attention, but | can remember | haveitin my

4 mind that that had been made.

5 Q Do you know when, Archbishop -- Cardinal, when
6 [ name actually did get made public?

7 A | don't, no, unh-unh.

8 Q Haveyou heard from any source that after it was
9 made public by || that other victims

10 did come forward?

1 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form.

12 THEWITNESS: I'm sorry. | saw you

13 moving before | answered.

14 MR. LO COCO: Did he go public, Mike?
15 MR. FINNEGAN: Hedid.

16 MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

17 MR. LO COCO: | was worried about that.

18 So, first of all, do you know |

19 THE WITNESS: No.

20 BY MR. ANDERSON:

21 Q WA, heresthe question. The use of the name
22 threw him off. So have you heard or did you

23 become aware that after - name went public

24 and was made public by a survivor who came

25 forward by the name of _ that
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1 other victims came forward?

2 A | did not know that.

3 Q Diditworry you asArchbishop back then in 2004
4 that these names on this exhibit who had

5 unsubstantiated allegations remained in ministry

6 and posed arisk of harm to the kids?

7 A Wel, generically | was worried about everybody,
8 you know, you are saying how could | be

9 absolutely sure. How could | have any -- How

10 could | have as much certainty asis moraly

11 possible about everybody, and certainly these on
12 thislist would have been higher on that list, so

13 | said, "What elsecan | do." You ask the police
14 to look into it, you ask our independent

15 investigator to look into it, you refer it to the

16 Review Board. If they come up to say "This

17 cannot be substantiated," that's all | could do.

18 Q Wll, you were aware that the DA declined

19 prosecution most of the time because of the

20 statute of limitations?

21 A That'swhy we would have that independent
22 prosecutor. Some would say, "Oh, good, we don't
23 haveto do anything," but we said, "Unh-unh, we
24 haveto hold ourselves to a higher standard."

25 Q And you aso did express concern about priests
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1 being wrongfully maligned, correct?

2 A That'slegitimate. Right, | did.

3 Q Butyou aso had to balance that against --

4 against the wellbeing of the children of the

5 community of faith, right?

6 A That'sfor sure. That'sfor sure.

7 Q Sowhen you are balancing that, the decision was
8 made to error on the side of priests being

9 wrongfully maligned versus the possibility of any
10 of these priests offending, correct?

11 A | would say --

12 MR. LO COCO: Objection. Object to the
13 form. It'sargumentative. You can answer.

14 THE WITNESS: No, | would think that

15 would not be avalid assumption, because there
16 could be others not on thislist. Again, I'm

17 speaking just in generic memory. You know,

18 remember you know from the Dallas Charter that
19 the Review Board, the Independent Review Board
20 doestwo thingsfor us. They substantiate an

21 allegation and then they assess fitness for

22 ministry. There are some cases, but if you ask

23 meto namethem | wouldn't be able to, but just
24 genericaly there's a possibility of a priest

25 that the Review Board said, "We cannot
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substantiate this case, we don't think it

happened, and the police can't, either, and he
deniesit and there's nothing else in his record,
but we think he should not be reassigned,” and
then | would listen to them. So there would be
examples of us -- | think what you are saying is

it's atough call between protecting innocence of

co N o 0o B~ W N PP

priests and protecting children. | would like to

9 think that the latter has more weight, the

10 protection of children.

11 Q Let'smakesurewe don't mix up our terms,

12 because | think we want to be talking about the
13 samething. So first let's -- One category is

14 substantiated?

15 A Yes

16 Q | will agreethose are ones where the Review
17 Board and your officeis satisfied they can go on
18 thelist, correct?

19 A Right.

20 Q The next category is not substantiated or without
21 substantiation, okay?

22 A Okay.

23 Q And that means that there is some information
24 that the priest abused?

25 A Therewasan allegation, yes.
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1 Q Therewasan allegation. And then the third

2 dlegation isafase one, didn't happen.

3 A Okay.

4 Q Okay?

5A Okay.

6 Q And that'sdifferent from not substantiated,
7 okay?

8 A Um-hum.

9 Q Solet'susethose three categories,

10 substantiated, not substantiated and false.

11 A Okay.

12 Q Okay. Becausewe don't want them mixed up not
13 substantiated with false.

14 A Sure.

15 Q Then looking at the non-substantiated

16 dlegations, those without substantiation here,
17 were any of these priests against whom

18 alegations had been made but not substantiated
19 restricted in their access to children?

20 A | couldn't recall. 1 wouldn't know. Can | say,
21 if you dlow meto elaborate --

22 Q If you wish.

23 A --that'sacategory that we learned tragicaly
24 doesn't work, so | could not see -- | could not

25 see meusing that.
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1 Q Whendidyou learn it didn't work?

2 A TheBishops learned that because, as you know, in
3 the past we'd have documents from psychologists

4 and all saying, "You can reassign this man, but

5 he shouldn't be assigned with minors." Whereis

6 that going to be. You can't do that. So | would

7 not think -- that would not -- in my mind that

8 would be an impossible distinction.

9 Q | missed -- | didn't understand the last part

10 when you say it would be an impossible

11 distinction. What did you mean?

12 A Theold category of restricted ministry.

13 Q Oh, I see.

14 A That you can assign a priest to aministry that
15 would not entail contact with minors. That's

16 impossible.

17 Q Yes. | get that now, yeah. At onetimel think
18 there was common thinking --

19 A At onetimethey thought they could do that, and
20 apparently so did the psychologists and all, but

21 that tragically, well, that didn't work, so we

22 can't do that.

23 Q When do you think -- When you say the "we," |
24 think your are talking about the Bishops.

25 A Um-hum.
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1 Q When do you think that we learned that?

2 A | think that would have been Ddllas. | would
3 like to think we would have learned it ahead of

4 time, but in Dallas we formalized it.

5 Q I'mshowing you another exhibit, Cardinal. This
6 oneis 121799.

7 A Gotit.

8 Q I'mgoingto try to keep it so we can use our
9 time, | know we don't have time to review the
10 entirething, so | will represent to you that

11 thisoneis produced to us and looks like, you

12 know, thisis something that is --

13 MR. LO COCO: Thiswas an exhibit to Dr.
14 Cusack's deposition, wasn't it, Mike?

15 MR. FINNEGAN: Yes.

16 BY MR. ANDERSON:

17 Q And there's actualy two copies of the same
18 document. Thefirst two pages are one, and then
19 the second two pages is the same document but
20 with handwriting.

21 A Um-hum.

22 Q Sofirst at thetop of it it says, "Process for
23 Listing Past Clergy Offenders?”

24 A Um-hum.

25 Q And when you look at this, does this -- you will
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1 seeat Item No. 2 the processto be used is as

2 follows. Item No. 2 says, "Determine what

3 information to include,” and then paren interna

4 team. A isname, B istime frame of incidents,

5 e.g., mid 1970s. C, parishes served and dates.

6 D, when removed from ministry, maybe this --

7 maybe include this, and, E, current status.

8 A Um-hum.

9 Q | will represent to you on our review of the

10 documents, and Finnegan did this so he's good at

11 this, that the list that was published only

12 publishes A, the name, and E, the current status.

13 A Um-hum.

14 Q Thequestion then iswhy did you and your office
15 make the decision not to include B, C and D?

16 A Um-hum. The specific answer to that | wouldn't
17 know. | think that the encouragement that were

18 getting, Wisconsin traded on the names.

19 Primarily we want the names. The other stuff

20 seemed to be not as essential as the name.

21 Q Wasthat your call or did somebody e se urge that
22 toyou?

23 A I'msureit was part of encouragement given to me
24 Dby others, but | would have to take either the

25 credit or the blame for the ultimate decision

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 80



00080
1 that was made.

2 Q Do you remember who it was specifically that
3 urged that other information not be included?

4 A No. Boy, | was consulting alot of people, and
5 who came up that specific one, | don't know.

6 Q Okay. Let'sturn to thethird page of this

7 document which mimics the first page, but it's

8 got additional handwriting, and to the left of

9 Item No. 2 you will see the handwriting

10 "Objectiveisto let people know --

11 A Um-hum.

12 Q -- surface morevictims."

13 A Um-hum.

14 Q Whose handwriting is that?

15 A | don't know. Not mine.

16 Q Wouldn't you agree, Cardinal, that had all these
17 items been disclosed as contemplated at least by
18 this document at this time, that more victims

19 would have surfaced back then if the dates of the
20 reports had been known, the dates of the

21 incidents had been made known, the details of the
22 incidents had been made known, the parishes where
23 they served had been known and what actions, if
24 any, taken by the Archdiocese had been known?
25 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form of the
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1 question, it's compound, it calls for speculation

2 and there's alack of foundation, particularly

3 with Cardina Dolan on this particular question

4 on what effect that would have had. Subject to

5 those objections, if you have an answer, you can

6 giveit.

7 THEWITNESS: Well, dl | know is| got

8 so much criticism for just releasing the names

9 that | -- the other stuff | probably didn't have

10 timeto think of.

11 BY MR. ANDERSON:

12 Q Wouldn't you agree that the objective to let the
13 people know and have some more victims surface
14 would have been served if that was the objective

15 by more information being disclosed?

16 MR. LO COCO: Same objections. You may
17 answer.
18 THEWITNESS: That'savery laudable

19 objective. Whether the -- and I'd like to think

20 that was the main reason that we reported the

21 names. Whether the others would have amplified

22 that, that would be conjecture on my part.

23 BY MR. ANDERSON:

24 Q Thisisanother document, but it was produced in

25 another context and the Bate stamp is alittle
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1 out of sync with the other exhibit numbers. So

2 this exhibit number isAMIL00697. My only
3 question to you is, Cardinal, as Archbishop did
4 you ever seethis particular handwritten

5 document?

6 A Notthat | can recall.

7 Q Do you recognize the signature?

8 A | would not recognize the signature.

9 MR. LO COCO: Just to befair to the
10 record, | don't think we produced thisin the
11 Chapter 11 case. | think you got it some other
12 place.

13 MR. ANDERSON: | think that's true.
14 That'swhy it's marked that way.

15 MR. FINNEGAN: | think we did.

16 MR. LO COCO: You think there'san ADOM
17 number?

18 MR. FINNEGAN: Thereisan ADOM number.

19 Itwasjust easier for me to access --

20 MR. LO COCO: Okay. That'sfine.

21 MR. FINNEGAN: -- because we had used it
22 inthe pre--

23 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. | would have been

24 worried that we didn't. Okay.
25
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q Cadind, I'm handing you another exhibit, and

3 thisoneis marked 023888. This appearsto be --

4 A What wasit again, 889?

5 Q Thisis888 and 889.

6 A Oh, | see. Therestwo pagesthere. Thereit

7 is.

8 Q Thelast threedigits. Thisappearsto be, on

9 our reading of it, the Privileged and

10 Confidential Final Version of something

11 pertaining to a priest by the name of Daniel

12 Budzynski. You are familiar with Budzynski, are

13 you not?

14 A | am familiar with Daniel Budzynski.

15 Q And do you remember personally ever reviewing the
16 file maintained by the Archdiocese pertaining to

17 Budzynski?

18 A | cannot recall, but | would say | would have had
19 to because he's one of the ones | asked for a

20 return to the lay state.

21 Q And for you to make arequest of the Holy Father
22 for return to the lay state, would it have been

23 your practiceto fully review thefile or act

24 upon recommendation of those answering to you?

25 A Both.
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1 Q Do you have, with any sense of certainty or

2 memory today, that you actually did review the

3 Budzynski file or not?

4 A No, | can't remember reviewing it, and | have to
5 behonest did | review -- did they giveme a

6 summary of it -- Budzynski was so obviously

7 horriblethat | thought I want this one done and

8 | want it done expeditiously. So whether |

9 reviewed itin toto, | don't know. | cannot

10 remember.

11 Q Do you have any memory of how many people, how
12 many kids he was accused of having abused or

13 having admitted to having abused?

14 A | can recal thiswas a particularly nausesting
15 case.

16 Q Do you recal having paid money or authorized the
17 payment of money to Budzynski for his voluntarily
18 fleeing the priesthood?

19 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. Were
20 alittlefar afield from the purpose of the

21 deposition, but you may answer that.

22 THEWITNESS: | can't recall that, no,

23 unh-unh.

24 BY MR. ANDERSON:

25 Q Did the Archdiocese employ a practice under your
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1 watch that would pay money to those priests

2 accused or had been -- had abused, that they

3 would receive a certain amount of money if they
4 sought laicization voluntarily?

5 A Theway you would ask the question, Mr. Anderson,
6 | would say, no, that would not be a practice.

7 However, if | might, if I might presumeto say

8 what you might be getting at.

9 Q W, let me say how | read the practice and then
10 seeif I'm correct. It appearsthat therewas a
11 practice that was employed that if they -- they
12 wereto get paid $10,000 if they sought

13 laicization at the start, and then if they were

14 laicized voluntarily and did not contest it, they
15 would get $10,000 at the back end, atotal of

16 $20,000?

17 A Um-hum.

18 Q Does that sound right?

19 A I don't-- | would not call that a practice. |
20 would not deny that that was done on occasion,
21 but | would not call that a payoff or a

22 settlement. But | would not deny that that was
23 done, the fact that you mentioned. Wasit a

24 payoff, was it a settlement, was it an impetus, |

25 wouldn't say that, nor would | say wasit a
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1 normal practice, but it was done.

2 Q Andwhen it was done, it was done by and with the
3 Archdiocese and known only to those within the

4 Archdiocese?

5 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form,

6 foundation. You can answer.

7 MR. ANDERSON: Officials.

8 THEWITNESS: | don't know if |

9 understand the question. | would not have done

10 it on my own. | would have consulted with my

11 people, sure.

12 BY MR. ANDERSON:

13 Q But that was not made known to the public that
14 that was being done? That was done by the Office
15 of the Archbishop and those who you as Archbishop
16 choseto haveit known?

17 A | think -- | can't be sure. It would be

18 speculation. | cannot recall us, though, being

19 dlergic to theidea of letting that fact be

20 known. | mean, did we hold a press conference,
21 maybe not, but did | run it by the Finance

22 Council, did | spesk to the College of

23 Consultors, probably.

24 Q Canyou identify at any point in timein which

25 that particular practice, to the extent it was
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1 employed, was ever made known to the community of

2 faith?

3 MR. LO COCO: Objection to the form.

4 The Cardina said more than onceit wasn't a

5 practice. It was done.

6 BY MR. ANDERSON:

7 Q Wdl, what wasit? What would you cdl it then?
8 When you did it, did you ever make it known to

9 the community of faith that you did it?

10 A | can't recall.

11 Q I'mshowingyou exhibit -- another exhibit,

12 Cardinal. Thisoneismarked 009299. Thiswould
13 be aletter from then Vicar for Clergy Hornacek,
14 February 21, 2003, to apriest at the

15 Archdiocese, James Flynt.

16 A Um-hum.

17 Q And I'm directing your attention to the third
18 paragraph, Item No. 1. It says, "If apriest

19 dectsvoluntary laicization, we would offer what
20 has been our practice --

21 A Um-hum.

22 Q --if not policy, for more than a decade, namely
23 $10,000 when the petition is submitted and

24 $10,000 when a definitive response is received,

25 regardless of the contents of the response.”
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1 A Um-hum. Okay.

2 Q It'sapractice, isn'tit?

3 A Wdl, there's adifference between -- You could
4 say we would offer what has been donein the

5 past, or we would offer what has been our policy.
6 Isitapolicy? | don't think so. | mean, did

7 somebody come in and say to me, "Oh, Archbishop
8 Dolan, you haveto do this, thisis our policy,"

9 no. Did somebody comein and say to me,

10 "Archbishop, this has been donein the past,”" and
11 if there's aquestion of justice, helping a man

12 get medical insurance or to transition out of the

13 priesthood, which we were eager to have done and
14 there was a precedent for it, | might be open to

15 it. But wasit apolicy that was locked in, no.

16 Q | didn't say policy, | said practice.

17 A A practicethat it was done sometimes, yes, but
18 not aways, um-hum.

19 Q And when theterm "our practice” is used here,
20 the"our" refers to the Archdiocese of Milwaukee,
21 correct?

22 A Or tothe Vicar for Clergy, yes, um-hum.

23 Q I'm showing you another exhibit. This one,
24 Cardina, istwo pages and it involves Becker.

25 A Um-hum.

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 89



00089
1 Q Somebody known to you, | trust, as one of the

2 priests of the Archdiocese, and do you remember
3 how and if Becker was paid money and the

4 circumstances of it?

5 A | can remember that he's another one that |

6 wanted to laicize and to do it as expeditiously

7 aspossible. If | recall correctly, when the

8 laicization camethrough, helet it be known

9 through his attorney that he was going to be

10 without medical insurance because he had a year
11 to go before Medicare kicked in. | can remember
12 seeking consultation about it and being told that
13 both from a canonical and alegal point of view
14 if something happened to him, guess who would be
15 responsible, me, and so probably the most prudent
16 thing to do wasto see that this man had medica
17 coveragefor the last year before Medicare kicked
18 in. | said, "I don't want to give thisman a

19 check." It was suggested to methat | givea

20 check to our attorneys, who would giveit to his
21 attorney for the purchase of proper medical care.
22 Q Do you recdl that asit pertained to Becker he
23 was paid $10,000 under the practice, but didn't

24 get the second $10,000 because he did not

25 voluntarily seek laicization?

Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan Page 90



00090
1 A | cannot recdl if he voluntarily did or not.

2 Q Hedid not voluntarily petition for a

3 laicization.

4 A Um-hum.

5 Q Herefused it, but he did receive this $10,000,

6 so the question is do you actualy remember why

7 herecelved the 10,000?

8 A | do remember that, which | --

9 MR. LO COCO: You just answered that.

10 BY MR. ANDERSON:

11 Q Isthat what you answer was, it was because of
12 theinsurance?

13 A It wasbecause | wastold that that would be the
14 just thing to do, to -- not only the just thing

15 for him, but the just thing to protect the

16 Archdiocesethat if he had a stroke or something,
17 we would have a couple hundred thousand dollar
18 bill on our hands, so | provided for hedlth

19 insurance.

20 Q | took astatement from him at one point in time,
21 and hetold me, and I'm paraphrasing it, that he

22 was concerned that if he talked to me that the

23 settlement money he received from the Archdiocese
24 for going quietly would be -- have to be given

25 back. Does that resonate with you?
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1 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form of the

2 question, lacks foundation. You can answer.

3 THE WITNESS: Well, two things. First

4 of al, he hardly went quietly. He was one of

5 the more notorious whiners and narcissists that

6 wehad. And, number two, it doesn't take much to
7 know that his credibility is nothing. So |

8 wouldn't believe aword he said.

9 BY MR. ANDERSON:

10 Q Why do you say that?

11 A | mean, he had arecord of making these ludicrous
12 remarks, just these misstatements that were just

13 dl over the place.

14 Q Heaso had arecord of having abused multiple
15 children?

16 A Did heever.

17 MR. LO COCO: I'm going to need another
18 bresk.

19 MR. ANDERSON: Let's take a break now.
20 THE WITNESS. Where are we at? What
21 timeisit.

22 MR. ANDERSON: Right now | havetento

23 4:00. Should we take abreak?
24 THE WITNESS: | don't need one, but,

25 sure, | would defer to you guys.
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1 MR. LO COCO: Sure. My brain needs one.

2 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: Were off the
3 record at approximately 3:48. Thisisthe end of
4 Videotape No. 2.

5 (A recess was taken.)
6 (Exhibit 1 was marked.)
7 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: Thisis Videotape

8 No. 3in the deposition of Cardina Dolan. We

9 arenow on the record at approximately 4:01 p.m.
10 Proceed.

11 BY MR. ANDERSON:

12 Q Cardind, I've placed before you what | had
13 promised you earlier that | would present the

14 exhibit now marked 1 which was the list that was
15 published firstin 2004. This exhibit | will

16 represent to you we actually pulled off the

17 internet in '08, and it appears to usto be the

18 same names listed, and the status of the priests
19 may have changed from '04 to '08, but otherwise
20 it would be the same. So | will just represent

21 that to you as the way we believe it to be.

22 A Um-hum.

23 Q If it proves otherwise, | will stand corrected,
24 but for our purposes | think it is correct. So

25 this appears to be the list that was released in
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1 20047

2 A Yes

3 Q I'dliketo ask you some questions about the

4 files maintained by the Archdiocese. Under Canon
5 Law, of course, thereis arequirement that files

6 be maintained on each priest, correct?

7 A Yes

8 Q And theresafile maintained in the Chancery
9 pertaining to each priest called a priest file?

10 A Yes.

11 Q Andthere'saso under Canon Law arequirement
12 that saysthat if there's scandalous material,

13 that that be maintained by the Ordinary in a

14 secret file, correct?

15 A | didn't know that of Canon Law.

16 Q You did not know that?

17 A | did not know that, no.

18 MR. LO COCO: I'm sorry. Can | have

19 that last question back, please. | wasn't redly

20 aquestion, it was a statement.

21 COURT REPORTER: "And there's dso under
22 Canon Law arequirement that says that if there's
23 scandalous material, that that be maintained by

24 the Ordinary in asecret file, correct? Answer:

25 | didn't know that of Canon Law. Question: You
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1 did not know that? Answer: | did not know that,

2 no."

3 MR. LO COCO: | object to the question
4 because that whole issue was dealt with in Dr.

5 Cusack's deposition, and the fact that there's

6 nothing in the file and we have, of course,

7 produced everything pursuant to prior motion

8 practicein this case.

9 MR. ANDERSON: Wl the question didn't
10 make any assumption. It'swhat Canon Law is.
11 Cannon 49 requiresit. I'm asking if he knew
12 about it.

13 MR. LO COCO: It'syour statement about
14 Canon Law, Jeff. Let's ask a question.

15 BY MR. ANDERSON:

16 Q Cardind, thefilesthat get maintained

17 pertaining to the priests, and specifically those
18 that have offended or have been accused of

19 offending, that information is maintained in the
20 Chancery in the priest file, correct?

21 A Correct.

22 MR. LO COCO: Just aminute. I'm

23 putting this on therecord. At the bresk | asked
24 Mr. Anderson and Mr. Finnegan why a New York
25 Times reporter would have been calling to ask
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1 questions about this deposition. | wastold by

2 these gentlemen that they didn't contact the

3 Times, thisis a deposition under seal, however

4 they did inform their clients that this

5 deposition was taking place and, of course, they
6 have no control over their clients.

7 | was further told by Mr. Anderson that

8 hedid not speak to Ms. - about anything
9 substantively related to this deposition, yet I'm
10 reading the online article that was posted 17

11 minutes ago with quotes from Jeff Anderson.

12 MR. ANDERSON: Wait a minute.

13 MR. LO COCO: Thisisgoing to beraised
14 with Judge Kelley on Thursday. Ask your next
15 question.

16 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. At the break you
17 asked me about the Times. | told you | was

18 called this morning. We had told our clients.

19 [ osced if | was taking the

20 deposition, where | was and if | was taking the
21 deposition, and | told her yes. She asked, "What
22 isitabout." | said, "It pertainsto the

23 bankruptcy and it pertains to discovery of

24 matters pertaining to objections that have been

25 made, and it pertainsto the 575 claims that have
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1 been brought and some objections that have been

2 madeto the claims," and that's what it pertains

3 to.

4 MR. LO COCO: First of al, that

5 representation to her isfalse. This deposition

6 dealswith thelist and with two claims, A-12 and
7 A-13. Let mefinish. Secondly, the quote in the
8 Times online says, quote from Mr. Anderson, "The
9 deposition of Cardinal Dolan is necessary to show
10 that there's been along-standing pattern and

11 practice to keep secrets and keep the survivors
12 from knowing that there had been afraud

13 committed,” close quote. That's not what you

14 told me before we went back on the record you
15 said to her. | think that violates --

16 MR. FINNEGAN: That is a statute of

17 limitations issue, Frank. That's the whole

18 issue, what information has been given to

19 survivors.
20 MR. ANDERSON: That istheissue.
21 MR. LO COCO: I'm not arguing about it

22 any further with you guys. | have made any

23 comments on therecord. We will dedl with Judge
24 Keley on Thursday. Ask your next question.

25 THE WITNESS: Asit pertains to what you
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1 asked what | told her, | told you the substance

2 of what | told her and that's --

3 MR. LO COCO: Ask your next question.

4 You shouldn't have been talking to her about the
5 substance of the deposition.

6 THEWITNESS: Do | have to continue? |
7 feel very uncomfortable continuing. | don't know
8 if | have the attitude or spirit to go on.

9 MR. LO COCO: Thiswas done

10 cooperatively to advance the case in Milwaukee,
11 not so you could get your mug on TV again, Jeff,
12 or in the New York Times, which | know is what's

13 most important to you.

14 MR. ANDERSON: | got called and asked --

15 Look --

16 MR. LO COCO: Let's go off therecord.

17 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: We're now off the

18 record at approximately 4:07.

19 (A recess was taken.)

20 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: We're back on the
21 record at approximately 4:20 p.m.

22 MR. LO COCO: We have agreed to move

23 forward to complete this deposition. Cardina

24 has done nothing but be cooperative here, and we

25 want to finish this as expeditiously as possible.
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1 Next question.

2 MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Cardinal. We
3 are going to shoot to try to get done by 5:00 so

4 you can make your 5:30 appointment.

5 BY MR. ANDERSON:

6 Q Wewere asking some questions about the files
7 maintained at the Chancery pertaining to the

8 priests, and in particular priests who have been

9 accused of or found to have committed sexual

10 abuse of minors. Directing your attention to

11 that topic, Cardinal, who at the Chancery besides
12 yourself had access to those files?

13 MR. LO COCO: Objection, foundation. If
14 you know.

15 THE WITNESS: Vicar for Clergy,

16 Chancellor.

17 BY MR. ANDERSON:

18 Q Andwhen and if afilereflected a history of
19 sexua abuse by one of those offenders, would
20 that information be released to anybody outside
21 of the Office of the Archdiocese if they

22 requested to know about that offender, such asa
23 victim?

24 MR. LO COCO: I'm sorry. Can you read
25 that back?
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1 MR. ANDERSON: | can rephraseit, if you
2 want.
3 MR. LO COCO: Okay.

4 BY MR. LO COCO:

5 Q If avictim cameto the Archdiocese to ask about
6 the history of an offender, would avictim be

7 given accessto that file?

8 A | can remember cases where that happened.

9 Q Canyou identify when?

10 A No, | couldn't.

11 Q Canyou identify what offender, where that

12 happened?

13 A No.

14 Q Can you identify who in your office made such a
15 file available to a victim who requested it?

16 A By Canon Law the Chancdllor hasit as hisor her
17 jurisdiction to exercise -- to make sure there's

18 discipline over thefiles. | can remember our

19 Victims Assistant Coordinator being very

20 concerned about victims that would be reading

21 that file. She herself sometimes cautioned

22 againstit. | think when the victim would
23 insist, aslong as the counselor -- emotiona
24 counsdlor, not alegal counsel, was with the

25 victim in case there was areaction, that even
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1 the Victims Assistance Coordinator said that was

2 fineto doiit.

3 Q Can you identify the name of any survivor or
4 victim where afile was made accessible to them?

5 A No, | couldn't remember.

6 Q Canyou give mean estimate of the number of
7 instances where it was done?

8 A No.

9 Q Thereisadocument I'm going to show you here
10 which is marked Exhibit 121519, Cardinal, and the
11 date on thefirst page says, "Approved

12 January 23, 2008."

13 A Um-hum.

14 Q Inour review thiskind of indicates that this
15 may have been something that was created under
16 Archbishop Weakland, but I'm not sure. First, do
17 you recognize this document?

18 A No.

19 Q Okay. But at theright it says, "Files:

20 Priest," correct?

21 A Um-hum, yes.

22 Q And it taks about the summary and scope of the
23 policy. Thispolicy pertaining to files and

24 priests, correct?

25 A Correct.
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1 Q AtltemD it states, "The Chancellor is

2 ordinarily delegated by the Archbishop to have

3 primary responsibility for maintenance of priest

4 files," isthat correct?

5 A Correct.

6 Q Second pageit identifies under "Possible

7 Contents of the Files," Item A, they'rein the

8 Chancery Office, B, confidentia information is

9 Vicar for Clergy Office, correct?

10 A Correct.

11 Q And thereit states, "Thisfile contains matters
12 that affect a priest's right of privacy.

13 Confidential information is primarily located in
14 the priest'sfilein the Vicar for Clergy Office.

15 Some confidential information may be located in
16 the Chancery, including," and then it's

17 identified. Isthat acorrect statement of the

18 policy?

19 A That would be a correct statement of the policy.
20 You are reading from it.

21 Q Andthen at Item D it states, "Items Not To Be
22 Retained in Clergy Permanent Files." A -- Not A.
23 Item Dot 1, anonymous letters shall not be

24 inserted in the clergy permanent file. The

25 priest may be informed of its contents if deemed
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1 appropriate, but the letter is not to be filed.

2 Why would an anonymous letter not be put into the
3 file?

4 MR. LO COCO: Objection, foundation. If
5 you know. If you know.

6 THEWITNESS: | don't know.

7 BY MR. ANDERSON:

8 Q Thenext item not to be retained in the clergy
9 permanent file states, quote, "Narrative and

10 progress reports from professionals and treatment
11 centers are ordinarily read by the appropriate

12 Archdiocesan officials and returned to the person
13 or organization that sent the report; if the

14 report includes a brief statement of a

15 professional indicating in summary form the

16 diagnosis and prognosis, that may be retained as
17 noted above." Why isthat information not to be
18 included in thefile as a matter of policy?

19 MR. LO COCO: Objection, lacks

20 foundation. If you know, you can answer.

21 THE WITNESS: Yes, because most of the
22 treatment centers would say it shouldn't be.

23 BY MR. ANDERSON:

24 Q The next page deas with access, Cardinal, Roman
25 No. IV. It states, "The Archbishop, the
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1 Auxilliary Bishop, the Chancellor, the Vicar for

2 Clergy, and the Vice Chancellor all have ordinary
3 accessto the priest files, i.e., they can at any

4 time have access to thefiles." Was that the

5 practice?

6 A Yes

7 Q B states, "The Archbishop may authorize other
8 individuasto have limited access to a specific

9 fileor filesin writing. This authorization

10 shall be only for alimited time period." That

11 refersto limited accessto clergy. In other

12 words, what does this mean?

13 MR. LO COCO: What does 4B mean?

14 MR. ANDERSON: Yes, what does 4B refer
15 to.

16 THEWITNESS: If theindividual priest

17 wanted to review hisfile, for instance.

18 BY MR. ANDERSON:

19 Q Okay. That'swhat | thought, but | wanted to
20 clarify it from you. The next page, Cardindl, is
21 part of the document, and directing your

22 attention to F it states, "If an individua or

23 entity not described above wishes access to

24 records or to have copies of specific information

25 released, that may be done only upon the
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1 following conditions: One, awritten request

2 from the person or entity seeking information.

3 Two, asigned permission from the priest involved
4 and, three, the permission of the Chancellor or

5 the Vicar for Clergy." Was that the policy?

6 A That'sthe policy here.

7 Q Soif | read this correctly, if avictim came and
8 said, "l want to see the priest's file and know

9 about his history," it would require all three of

10 thesethings?

11 A Yes

12 Q Archbishop, | have anumber of documents where |
13 don't want to take the time to review them now,
14 but they reflect instances where you determined
15 and your office determined that a number of

16 priests were unfit for ministry because of sexual
17 abuse of children, and you wrote -- and you

18 removed them from ministry or they were already
19 removed from ministry so that they wouldn't be
20 around kids. And there's anumber of files that
21 reflect that, as you have aready stated, you

22 didn't have the power to remove them from the
23 clerica state, just from ministry and faculty,

24 which is a correct statement?

25 A Correct.
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1 Q Butthere'saso anumber of documents that you

2 sent to the CDF urging the removal from the

3 clerical state and stating the reasons, that

4 there had been multiple accusations substantiated
5 of sexua abuse, and the responses from the CDF
6 often times took months, if not years, and many
7 timesthere was no response. My question to you
8 is--

9 MR. LO COCO: I'm going to object to

10 everything you just said. You want to smear the
11 church, go ahead. You want to show the Cardinal
12 adocument, then show him a document or just
13 forget the prece and ask your question.

14 MR. ANDERSON: Give me that.

15 MR. LO COCO: Or let Mike ask the

16 questions. | know that doesn't fit your ego. Go
17 ahead.

18 BY MR. ANDERSON:

19 Q Let merephraseit for you. When you made a
20 request to the CDF for removal of priests from
21 theclerical state, were you satisfied with the

22 response you got and was it timely?

23 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form,

24 compound and overbroad. You can answer.

25 THE WITNESS: |'d rather not. | mean,
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1 do | haveto?

2 MR. LO COCO: The problem | have with it
3 isit's so non-specific, Jeff. Give him an

4 example. It'sjust not afair question.

5 MR. FINNEGAN: Is he choosing not to
6 answer?

7 THEWITNESS: | don't know if |

8 understand it.

9 MR. LO COCO: Than you don't have to

10 understand it.

1n MR. ANDERSON: | will come back to that
12 and just ask the question then on the topic,

13 okay?

14 BY MR. ANDERSON:

15 Q Isit correct to say that the Archbishop has the
16 power to tax each parish?

17 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. I'm
18 going to instruct Cardinal Dolan not to answer
19 that. That has nothing to do with this, the

20 purpose of this deposition. Next question.

21 MR. FINNEGAN: | think one of your

22 objectionson the _case isthe

23 relationship between the Archdiocese and one of
24 the parish people. | think it's completely

25 relevant.
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1 MR. LO COCO: First of all, you aready

2 know that there's the ability to -- thereisa

3 taxathat's been discussed.

4 MR. FINNEGAN: All you haveto say is

5 yes. That's pretty basic.

6 MR. ANDERSON: But, Frank, it goesto

7 theissuesthat have been raised --

8 MR. FINNEGAN: You areraising them.

9 Thisisyour objection.

10 MR. ANDERSON: -- by your side, so we
11 redly haveto just establish aquestion. It'sa

12 simple question.

13 MR. LO COCO: She's already decided that
14 the parishes are separate from the Archdiocese.
15 MR. ANDERSON: Thisisdifferent. This

16 isadifferent inquiry.

17 MR. FINNEGAN: Thisis control, not --
18 MR. LO COCO: Next question.
19 MR. ANDERSON: Areyou instructing him

20 not to answer?

21 MR. LO COCO: Yes.

22 BY MR. ANDERSON:

23 Q Isit correct to say the Archbishop has the power
24 to set the amount of the tax or the assessment to

25 aparish?
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1 A I'mnot surewhat Canon Law says about that.

2 Canon law speaks about the cathedraticum, which
3 isthetechnical term for the expectation that

4 each parish would have to contribute to the

5 pastorad life of the Archdiocese. How that's

6 set, I'm not quite sure.

7 Q Okay. Isit correct to say that the Archbishop
8 requires an annual report from each parish?

9 A An annual financial report, yes, itis.

10 Q Doesthat aso include the state of affairs of
11 the parish or just the financias?

12 A The Canon Law would say that the Archbishop or
13 the Bishop would request from each parish a

14 financial and what's call a status animarum, the
15 state of the souls of the parish, the number of

16 baptisms, first communions, parishioners, deaths,
17 marriages.

18 Q Isit correct to say that the Archbishop has the
19 power to set rules to regulate the conduct of

20 those working in the parish, including the choir
21 director?

22 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form, lacks
23 foundation. If you understand the question and
24 can give an answer, you are welcometo. And it's

25 compound.
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1 THE WITNESS: Well, you mean would an

2 Archbishop of aDiocese havetheright to set

3 personnd policy or to hire and fire peoplein a

4 parish?
5 MR. ANDERSON: To regulate the conduct.
6 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. |

7 have no ideawhat that means.

8 MR. ANDERSON: Pertaining to training

9 for sexua abuse, for example, of employees.

10 THE WITNESS: Wedid that. We have that
11 safe-- What's the name of the very rigorous

12 policy that is now -- the safe environment

13 training, the safe environment training. We have
14 mandated that for al the parishes. If that's an

15 example of what you mean, yes.

16 BY MR. ANDERSON:

17 Q Okay. Soisit correct then to say that the

18 Archbishop does have the power to set rules to
19 regulate the conduct of those workingin a

20 parish?

21 A TheArchdiocese -- A Diocese would usually put
22 out amanual of expectations for the priests and,
23 | mean, that they be alive with the teaching of

24 the church and the values of the gospel.

25 Q Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop has, as it
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1 pertainsto, let's say, the sexual misconduct

2 policy, and what was it called, the safe what

3 program?

4 A Thesafeguarding -- safe environment program.
5 Q Safeenvironment program. Would that apply to
6 al the employees and volunteersin a parish?

7 A Thesafeguarding of God's children would be, yes.
8 Q Doesthe Archbishop have the power to mandate
9 gpecific training for al people working and

10 volunteering in the parishes?

1 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform, calls

12 for -- | think it's vague. You can answer it, if

13 you understand it.

14 THE WITNESS: | think the Archbishop can
15 set apolicy for the Archdiocese that this

16 training would be expected.

17 BY MR. ANDERSON:

18 Q And require compliance?

19 A And then we have the annual audit to see if we
20 arein compliance.

21 Q Isit correct to say the Archbishop has the power
22 to mandate background checks for each person

23 working and volunteering in the parishes?

24 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form.

25 THE WITNESS: Whether we have the power
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1 to, | don't know. We have done that.

2 BY MR. ANDERSON:

3 Q Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop has the power
4 to fire somebody, discharge somebody, working

5 within one of the parishes who does not comply

6 with the requirements for training and the safe

7 environment program?

8 MR. LO COCO: I'm going to object to the

9 form of the question. That callsfor alegal

10 conclusion, and | don't think Cardinal Dolan is

11 quaified to answer that question the way you

12 have asked it. But if you have an answer, you

13 can answer it.

14 THEWITNESS: | can't fire somebody in a
15 parish.

16 BY MR. ANDERSON:

17 Q You can set aregulation that requires somebody
18 to abide by the rules of the Archdiocese set by

19 you, and if they don't, they cannot work in the

20 Archdiocese?

21 MR. LO COCO: Kathy, | need the question
22 back.
23 MR. ANDERSON: Just let me -- You have

24 to let mefinish the question.

25 MR. LO COCO: I'm sorry.
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q Isitcorrect to say that you have set

3 regulations and rules, and that if they are not

4 abided by pertaining to safe environment and
5 other similar things, that the person that is

6 hired or volunteered in a parish cannot work in
7 that parish unless they abide by that rule,

8 correct?

9 MR. LO COCO: | object to the form of
10 the question, callsfor alegal conclusion. I'm
11 not going to let him answer that question the way
12 you phrased it. Regulations, rules? | mean,
13 ¢'mon, Jeff.

14 BY MR. ANDERSON:

15 Q Soyou set protocols for training of sexual
16 abuse, did you not?

17 A Yes, wedid.

18 Q For al priests?

19 A For all priests.

20 Q All employeesin parishes?

21 A Yes, volunteers.

22 Q And volunteers?

23 A Yes

24 Q And you required compliance, did you not?
25 A Yes
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1 Q And if therewas not compliance, they could not

2 then continue to work as an employee or volunteer
3 inaparish?

4 A They should not continue to work.

5 Q Isit correct to say the Archbishop has the power
6 to regulate the interactions -- Well, never mind.

7 1 will withdraw the question.

8 The pastor in a parish is appointed by

9 the Bishop and carries out his ministry in the

10 name of the Bishop, does he not?

11 A Inthe name of Jesus Christ and the Bishop.

12 Q TheArchbishop hastheright -- Isit correct to
13 say the Archbishop hastheright to transfer or

14 remove apriest?

15 A Yes

16 MR. LO COCO: Aslong asit'sapriest

17 that is one of yours, though.

18 THE WITNESS: | mean a Diocesan priest,
19 vyes.

20 BY MR. ANDERSON:

21 Q |IfitsaReigiousOrder priest and workingin
22 the Archdiocesg, it has to be with the permission
23 of the Ordinary, correct?

24 A The Bishop would provide faculties for the priest

25 to function.
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1 Q Andif the priest did not abide by the rules and

2 regulations promulgated by the Ordinary, the

3 Ordinary has the power to remove the faculties of

4 the--

5 A Of the priest.

6 Q --of theRedigious priest?

7 A Yes

8 Q And, thus, not allow him to work or minister in
9 the Archdiocese?

10 A Then hewould be unable to publicly exercise his
11 ministry.

12 Q Doesthe Archbishop have the right to terminate a

13 parish employee directly without doing so through

14 apastor?

15 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. If
16 you know.

17 THEWITNESS: | don't know.

18 BY MR. ANDERSON:

19 Q Isit correct to say that the Archbishop, as the
20 shepherd of the flock of an Archdiocese, has

21 responsibility for every Catholic in the Diocese

22 and the care of their souls?

23 A Thecare of the souls of everybody, Catholic and
24 not.

25 Q Isit correct to say the Archbishop is
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1 responsible for seeing that the Archdiocese

2 programs and directives are faithfully carried

3 out on thelocal level and on the parish level?

4 A Yes

5 Q Isitacorrect statement to say that the

6 Archbishop of the Archdiocese has direct

7 authority over al of the works of the apostolate
8 within his Diocese, even though this authority is
9 often exercised through others, such as pastors
10 and school administrators?

1 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form,

12 foundation. It'sambiguous. If you have an

13 answer, you can giveit.

14 THEWITNESS: | don't know. Theseare
15 very technical questions. It would seem to

16 require more of a canonist than myself.

17 BY MR. ANDERSON:

18 Q Do you have aresponseto the question? Do you
19 fed ableto answer it?

20 A | can't even remember the question.

21 Q | will ask it again. Isit correct to say the
22 Archbishop has direct authority over al of the
23 works of the apostolate within the Diocese, even
24 though this authority is often exercised through

25 others, such as pastors and school
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1 administrators?

2 A Itwould not be accurate to say an Archbishop has
3 direct authority, although that might be

4 clarified by the second -- the phrase that

5 that -- that he would trust others to exercise

6 vigilance and shepherding on his behalf.

7 Q It'sexercised through others, is that correct?

8 A It'sexercised most of the time through others.
9 MR. LO COCO: | need to put an objection
10 on therecord to the last question, and that is

11 that it callsfor an expert opinion, either a

12 Canon lawyer or civil lawyer or both. The answer
13 ison the record.

14 BY MR. ANDERSON:

15 Q Doesthe Archbishop have the power to require
16 background checks to be done on the workers and
17 thevolunteers at a parish?

18 MR. LO COCO: Objection, asked and

19 answered. If you know. Same expert opinion

20 question.

21 THEWITNESS: | know we require them. |
22 know some people have threatened to sue us for
23 doingit, so whether | have the power to or not,

24 | don't know. We have the expectation that it's

25 done.
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q Butyoudiddo it?

3 A Wehavedoneit.

4 Q Andyou did it because you wanted to protect
5 kids?

6 A | hopeso.

7 Q And you actualy required everybody to go through
8 background checks and training, right?

9 A Andrenew it over and over again.

10 Q And you received some criticism for having
11 implemented that, didn't you?

12 A TheBishops or me personally?

13 Q | don't know. Did you receive criticism?

14 A Yes. Yes, | did.

15 Q From -- | don't need names, but from what

16 quarters, what elements?

17 A Mostly from volunteers who would say, "Thisisan
18 invasion of privacy, thisis way too much." We

19 would often times get objections from parents who
20 would say that in our attempt to give sensitive

21 and age appropriate training to their children on

22 how to recognize signs of abuse, it was an

23 intrusion into parental authority. We got some

24 threats from people as far as civil rights and

25 personal rights.
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1 Q Andyou answered those criticisms by saying, "I'm

2 the shepherd of thisflock," in effect, "and I'm

3 going to do it because it's the right thing to do

4 and | believe | have the power?'

5 A 1 hopeso.

6 Q TheArchbishop does appoint the Superintendent of
7 Schools, doesn't he?

8 A Yes

9 Q |Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop has

10 responsibility for Catholic and religious

11 formation in Catholic schools within the

12 Archdiocese?

13 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. Can |
14 get that one back?

15 MR. ANDERSON: | will just read it

16 again.

17 BY MR. ANDERSON:

18 Q Isit correct to say the Archbishop has the
19 responsibility for Catholic religious formation
20 in Catholic schools within the Archdiocese?

21 A Yes

22 Q Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop has the right
23 of vigitation over the schoolsin his

24 Archdiocese?

25 A You mean he has the right to visit the schools?
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1 Yes.

2 Q Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop of a

3 Archdiocese possesses executive, legislative and
4 judicia power over matters within his

5 Archdiocese?

6 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform. It's
7 redly broad. You can answer that, if you have
8 an answer.

9 THEWITNESS: Can | ask you, | mean, it
10 seemslike I'm being asked about the Episcopal
11 Law Office. | thought this was a specific line
12 of questioning about the Archdiocese of Milwaukee
13 and the six and one-half yearsthat | had the

14 honor of being its shepherd.

15 MR. LO COCO: Itis. Thislast question
16 isbroadly related to the A-12 and A-13 cases

17 that are the subject, but if you have an answer,
18 answer it. If you don't, fine.

19 THE WITNESS: What was the question
20 again?

21 BY MR. ANDERSON:

22 Q Isitcorrect to say the Archbishop possesses
23 executive, legidlative and judicial power over
24 matters within his Archdiocese?

25 MR. LO COCO: Object to theform, it's
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1 overbroad, it's ambiguous, it's vague. If you

2 understand it, you can provide an answer.

3 THE WITNESS: In those areas given to

4 him. We discussed earlier an areawhere |

5 didn't.

6 BY MR. ANDERSON:

7 Q Such asremoval from the --

8 A Such asthereturn to the lay state.

9 Q Isitcorrect to say an Archbishop can enact

10 legidation for his Archdiocese within the

11 parameterslaid out in the genera law of the

12 church?

13 A Thegenera and particular law of the church,

14 yes.

15 Q | think the program that you developed was called
16 the safe environment program?

17 A The safe environment program, yes.

18 Q And that applied to all employees and volunteers
19 in the schools?

20 A Allright.

21 Q Isthat correct?

22 A | can'ttake credit for that. That was a

23 nationa program.

24 Q Butyou did implement it as a part of the Charter

25 Article 12 in the Archdiocese of Milwaukee?
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1A Yes, yes.

2 Q And similarly with background checks, Charter --
3 there's Charter Article 13 mandating background

4 checksfor parishes, schools and other paid

5 personnd and volunteers. You implemented that,

6 did you not?

7 A Yes

8 Q Okay. I'm going to turn back to showing you a
9 document here now to maybe be alittle more

10 specific for you and at the request of counsdl.

11 Thisis marked Exhibit 019924, and this, on our

12 reading, is aletter from you to His Eminence,

13 Joseph Cardinal Ratzinger, dated September 23,

14 2003. It pertainsto a Father O'Brien.

15 A Um-hum.

16 Q Inthefirst paragraph you state, "He has been
17 accused of sexual abuse." In the second

18 paragraph you report he had been criminaly

19 convicted of effectively molesting a 17-year-old?
20 A Um-hum.

21 Q Inthethird you report that he acknowledged his
22 responsibility to the police and the civil court.

23 In the fourth you report that he requested to be

24 dispensed from al obligations, and in this

25 letter, as| read it, you are urging his
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1 dispensation, correct?

2 A Yes

3 MR. LO COCO: Meaning return to the lay

4 dtate.

5 THE WITNESS: Right.

6 MR. ANDERSON: Yes. So isthat correct

7 acorrect statement, dispensation is return to

8 thelay state?

9 THE WITNESS: No, it would be the return
10 to the lay state.

1 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. | misspoke. Thank
12 you, Frank.

13 BY MR. ANDERSON:

14 Q The next exhibit is 039834.

15 A Um-hum.

16 Q And thisisNovember 19, 2004. Thisis about one
17 year later, aresponseto you -- excuse me-- a

18 letter from you to then His Eminence Joseph

19 Ratzinger, and in the fourth paragraph down you
20 state, "Subsequent to my earlier letter to you,

21 two additional allegations of sexua abuse by

22 Father O'Brien have been reported,” and at the

23 second page you write, "Moreover, | am convinced
24 that Father O'Brien is sincere and humblein

25 requesting dispensation.” So it soundslike as |
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1 read this that they had not taken action and you

2 arenow ayear later urging it. Do you remember

3 this?

4 A | remember the name. | don't remember all the
5 chronology of the case.

6 Q Do you remember being frustrated about the delay
7 in response here?

8 A | would not use the word frustrated. | would say
9 | was eager to haveit resolved.

10 Q I'm showing you now Exhibit 019938. Thiswould
11 beagain pertaining to O'Brien, and the year is

12 now September 6, 2005. You write to the

13 Congregation for the Doctrine at this time

14 Archbishop Amato?

15 A Um-hum.

16 Q Pertaining to O'Brien reporting he had been

17 convicted, it involved 14-year-old and at the

18 last paragraph you report, "Especially troubling

19 was areport that O'Brien had been observed on a

20 number of occasionsin the local library with

21 adolescent boys." | think you are expressing

22 aarm that he still was around youth and had not

23 been removed, correct?

24 A Um-hum.

25 Q Isthat yes?
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1 A Yes, dthough laicization may not have stopped

2 that, but | just wanted him as dramatically out

3 of the priesthood as possible.

4 Q Andinthe second page at the second paragraph
5 you state, "The potential for great scandal

6 exists?'

7 A Yes

8 Q What wasthe potential here?

9 A That this-- that the potential for scandal is

10 that this man has not been kicked out of the

11 priesthood with all the dramathat should

12 accompany that.

13 Q Yougoonto state, "If Father O'Brien, while
14 still in the clerical state, makes any

15 inappropriate advances on any of these adolescent
16 boysin whose company he has been observed, the
17 outcry will be huge?

18 A Um-hum.

19 Q "Thescanda liesnot in thelaicization, but in
20 the perception that the church has not acted

21 expeditiously enough knowing the multiple reports
22 of abuse."

23 A Um-hum.

24 Q Wereyou of the view when you urged and wrote

25 thisthat they just were too slow in responding
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1 to your sounding of the alarm?

2 A | would say that my impatience with the cases
3 being handled expeditiously would not have been

4 reserved to Rome. | would have the same

5 reservation with civil officias. | had the same

6 reservation with this. |1 had been eager to do

7 thisfor about the last three years and it's

8 taken that long to do it. So that impatience

9 would be targeted towards more people than just

10 Rome. But if you are asking me did | wish that

11 Rome had moved more quickly, | probably wished,
12 but most of thetime | was grateful for the

13 resolution that eventually did come, because |

14 found them amazingly sensitive; and, secondly, |
15 had to remind myself there are close to 3,000

16 Diocesesin theworld and | was one of them, so
17 that my cases were not the only ones. And,

18 thirdly, | at least knew that | had acted as

19 dramatically and as rigorous as possible in

20 removing him from the priesthood, and that was my
21 main -- that's the power that | had, so | had

22 doneit.

23 Q You expressed frustration about civil authorities
24 and impatience with failureto act. Did Michael

25 McCann or his office ever prosecute any priests
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1 reported by you or your office who had offended

2 solely on the basis of the report and the

3 information given to him by your office, to your
4 knowledge, during your tenure?

5 A | cannot recall.

6 Q | justused the Father O'Brien example. There
7 areother examples, Cardinal, where you urged

8 removal from the clerical state and you wrote

9 letters. Do you have amemory of other instances
10 likethat of O'Brien whereit took -- where you

11 had to write multiple letters before action was

12 taken?

13 A I can'trecal. | would not deny that there was
14 agenera sense of eagerness to have these things
15 resolved as quickly as possible by Bishopsin the
16 United States with aso arealistic assessment

17 that we had been rigorousin our approach to it,
18 and that secondly Rome was doing everything

19 possible. Thirdly, that Rome was listening to

20 us, and when the dispositions did come, we

21 appreciated the resolution, it was usually the

22 one we had asked for, and that we knew that since
23 the -- with the tidal wave of cases, Rome was

24 obviously avalanched with work to do and it was

25 doing the best it could.
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1 Q AstheArchbishop of Milwaukee and during your

2 tenure and having written to them and gotten some
3 of the responses you did, did you ever personaly

4 express to the head of the CDF that more needed

5 to be done and needed to be done quicker?

6 A | never had the occasion to meet with the Prefect
7 of the Congregation of the Doctrine of Faith on

8 any of those cases that | can recall.

9 Q You may have answered this, but did you ever
10 personally go to Rome and meet with the Prefect
11 for the CDF or the Secretary urging action be

12 taken pertaining to any given priest or priests?

13 A | cannot recall.

14 Q Had you learned or did you become aware while the
15 Archbishop of Milwaukee that your predecessor,
16 Archbishop Weakland, had done so concerning

17 Lawrence Murphy?

18 A | can'tremember. That he went, you mean?
19 Q Yes, that he met with the representatives of the
20 CDF and the Secretary for the CDF urging that

21 action be taken?

22 A | wouldn't have known that from him. | didn't
23 tak to him about it. Whether | knew that by a

24 referenceto the case or not, | can't recall.

25 Q Did you ever recall having any reason to or
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1 for -- Let merephraseit.

2 Did you ever review the Murphy file?

3 MR. LO COCO: What does that have to do
4 with this, Jeff?

5 MR. ANDERSON: Wll, I think it hasto

6 do with the practices. I'm just wondering if

7 there was aroutine practice pertaining to files

8 where there were a number of priests.

9 MR. LO COCO: You asked Cardina Dolan
10 hours ago about familiarizing himself, what he
11 reviewed, and he testified about his recollection
12 of whether | reviewed summaries or the actual
13 files, I can't tell you right now. So it's--

14 You are asking the same question, and -- let me
15 finish -- and Murphy is not part of A-12 or A-13.
16 MR. ANDERSON: But it does have to do
17 with what actions are taken and not taken, what
18 files arereviewed and what aren't reviewed and
19 what practices are employed. If you want to

20 instruct him not to answer, | will move on.

21 MR. LO COCO: W4, it'san irrdlevant

22 question. Murphy was deceased by the time

23 Cardina Dolan got to Milwaukee.

24 THEWITNESS: | don't think | reviewed
25 thefiles, many files, of dead priests.
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1 MR. ANDERSON: If you give me a moment
2 here, | think --
3 MR. LO COCO: | would suggest that we go

4 off the record, let me check my notes so that
5 whenever you finish | can ask my clarification,

6 if | have any.

7 MR. FINNEGAN: We have lessthan ten
8 minutes.
9 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: Were now off the

10 record at approximately 5:02.

1 (A recess was taken.)

12 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: We're back on the
13 record at approximately 5:04 -- 5:00.

14 BY MR. ANDERSON:

15 Q Allright, Cardinal. | don't have much left

16 here, but just alittle bit. | have put before

17 you Exhibit 040048. It's aletter of January

18 15th, 2008 from you as the Archbishop of

19 Milwaukee to then Most Reverend Angelo Amato of
20 the Congregation pertaining to Reverend John

21 Wagner. In thefirst sentence you state one of

22 thenormsand it'sin Latin. If you would be so

23 kind as to pronounce that for us.

24 A Sacramentorum sanctitatis tutela.

25 Q And what doesthat stand for in Latin -- in
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1 English?

2 A 1don'tknow. You got me. You are embarrassing
3 me.

4 Q W, I didn't know, soit'snot -- In any case,

5 you are stating, "l am submitting once again for

6 your consideration the case of apriest.” | am

7 reading into that some frustration. Did you fedl

8 it?

9 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form.

10 THEWITNESS: | can't remember what |
1 fet.

12 MR. ANDERSON: Okay.

13 THE WITNESS: Once again, | don't deny

14 that | was eager to have these cases resolved as

15 expeditiously as possible.

16 BY MR. ANDERSON:

17 Q Atthe-- inthe middle of it you write, "He has
18 now cut off all contact with representatives of

19 the Archdiocese, so we have no way of confronting
20 him on these additional reports, especialy the

21 extremely disturbing one that he may still bein

22 contact with teenage boys." Do you remember

23 that?

24 A | don't remember that, no.

25 Q You goon to state, "Therefore, the liability for
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1 the Archdiocese is great, asis the potential for

2 scandd if it appears that no definitive action

3 has been taken."

4 A Um-hum.

5 Q "Pending state legidation to abolish

6 retroactively the statute of limitations will

7 gain more supportersif it appears we are letting
8 these pending cases languish."

9 A Um-hum.

10 Q Asyou wrote this-- Why did you write this?

1 MR. LO COCO: Why did he write the
12 letter?

13 MR. ANDERSON: This part of it.

14 MR. LO COCO: About the statute of

15 limitations?

16 MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

17 THE WITNESS: I'm going to instruct

18 Cardinal Dolan not to answer that. That has

19 nothing to do with the deposition or the issues
20 that arein front of usfor A-12 and A-13.

21 BY MR. ANDERSON:

22 Q Isn'tthe statute of limitations a part of it?
23 MR. LO COCO: This hasto do with what
24 we have as lawyers euphemistically called

25 "windows legislation.” That's not a part of
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1 this. A-12 was abused in the early '70s, A-13

2 late'70s.

3 MR. ANDERSON: Does your instruction
4 stand?

5 MR. LO COCO: Yes.

6 MR. ANDERSON: Okay. | have no further
7 questions.

8 EXAMINATION

9 BY MR. LO COCO:

10 Q Cardind, I just have afew follow-up questions
11 for you. Well, | pulled out a document | wanted
12 to ask you about. Let meseeif | can find it

13 here. Well, let me giveyou thisone. It'sa

14 document you were asked about earlier. The Bates
15 label is 121871, and | want to direct your

16 attention to thislist of priests, allegations

17 without substantiation. Do you see that,

18 Cardina?

19 A I do.

20 Q The name_ is second down?

21 A Second, right.

22 Q And underneath his name it says, "Possible

23 mistaken identity," correct?

24 A Correct. It does say that.

25 Q Injustice would it have been appropriate to
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1 identify an allegation against Father [l if.

2 infact, it was a case of mistaken identity?

3 A No. That's one of the worries we had because,
4 unfortunately, we did have some cases of mistaken
5 identity. That'swhat | tried to say earlier.

6 That was one of the reasons that mitigated

7 against publishing ssmply an allegation.

8 Q Whileyou were Archbishop of Milwaukee, did you
9 meet with abuse survivors?

10 A Yes, | did.

11 Q Didyou try to answer the questions that they
12 presented to you?

13 A Surel did.

14 Q Did you know that you had staff people who were
15 meeting with abuse survivors that came forward?
16 A WelI, not only did I know it, | wanted them to.
17 We had afull-time person who met with them.

18 Q And did you ever instruct anyone at the

19 Archdiocese of Milwaukee, Dr. Cusack, the Victim
20 Assistance Coordinator, anyone who was dealing
21 with abuse survivorsto not tell the truth to

22 people?

23 A No, unh-unh.

24 Q Did you instruct them to be forthcoming with

25 abuse survivors?
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1A Yes

2 Q | want you to assume some facts for my next
3 couple of questions. | want you to assume that

4 Dr. Cusack testified about ten days or so ago.

5 Shewas asked some similar questions about the
6 published list and what information was included
7 and what information was not included. | want

8 you to further assume that she was asked whether
9 one of thereasons -- She was asked about why the
10 dates of assignment was not included in the list
11 of prieststhat wereidentified, and | want you

12 to assume that among other things she said that
13 the dates of assignment were an important part of
14 the substantiation process. |If someone came

15 forward and said they were abused by Father So
16 and So and that priest was at a parish within a
17 year or so of the allegation, that helped the

18 Archdiocese substantiate a claim of abuse, and if
19 the dates of assignment were published, that

20 would take away that investigative tool.

21 My question is do you recall discussions
22 about that particular reason for not including

23 the dates of assignment?

24 A Wel, | recal that there were long discussions

25 about abunch of reasons not to do that. Do |
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1 recall that was one of them, not specifically,

2 no.
3 Q And did you have abuse survivors -- Strike that.

4 | think you answered that.

5 MR. LO COCO: That'sdl | have. Thank
6 you.
7 EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. ANDERSON:

9 Q Cardina, would you agree that if the Archdiocese
10 had, in fact, disclosed to the public the history

11 of molestation known to the Archdiocese of the

12 substantiated offenders and a complete history

13 and made that public, that would have caused

14 great scanda?

15 MR. LO COCO: Object to the form.

16 THE WITNESS: What does that mean, that
17 | can --

18 MR. LO COCO: You can answer it. |

19 think the term scanda is ambiguous, but if you
20 have an answer, you can answe.

21 THEWITNESS: You mean if the disclosure
22 of the names would have included --

23 MR. ANDERSON: | will rephrase the

24 question so you understand the question.

25
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1 BY MR. ANDERSON:

2 Q If the Archdiocese had when they had published
3 the names also published publicly the history

4 known to the Archdiocese, what they had known
5 about when they abused and where and what the
6 Archdiocese had done about it, in other words,

7 the history known to the Archdiocese, isit

8 correct to say that if such adisclosure would

9 have been made as contained in the files, it

10 would have caused great scandal?

1 MR. LO COCO: Same objections. In

12 addition, it calls for speculation, lacks

13 foundation. If you have an answer, you can give
14 it.

15 THE WITNESS: Well, recalling those

16 days, | don't know how it would have been

17 possible to have caused more scandal. | mean,
18 the church was -- there was scandal al over the
19 place, and most of it was out there anyway. So
20 every day there were articles in the newspaper
21 about this priest, what he had done 30 years ago
22 and what parishes and interviews with the

23 victims, so | don't know how there could have
24 been more scandal. | wastold not to release the

25 names because it would -- the names because it
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1 would cause scandal. | said, "Well, | don't know

2 how it can get worse and | think the people need

3 to hear this, and if peoplein the know are

4 telling methisisagood thing to do, | think we

5 should do it."

6 Q Why weren't -- Why wasn't the history known to
7 the Archdiocese concerning each of these

8 offenders then publicly disclosed at the time the

9 nameswere?

10 A | can't--

1 MR. LO COCO: Objection, asked and
12 answered.

13 THEWITNESS: | can't recall the reason.
14 MR. ANDERSON: That'sdl | have.

15 MR. LO COCO: Thank you, Cardind. |

16 have nothing else.

17 VIDEOTAPE TECHNICIAN: Thisisthe end
18 of Videotape No. 3 and the conclusion of the

19 deposition of Cardinal Dolan. We are now off the
20 record at approximately 5:20 on February 20,

21 2013.

22 MR. LO COCO: Off the video record we
23 haveto do one more thing, and you don't haveto
24 let me know today, we have to let Kathy know.

25 The law gives you the chance to do something
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1 called reading and signing. You get to read this

2 deposition and seeif Kathy got it down right and
3 then signitin front of anotary, if you make

4 any changes, or you can waive that right. | will
5 tell you that most people in our jurisdiction

6 waiveit, Kathy is excellent and you probably

7 don't need one more thing to do, but if you do

8 want to read and sign it, it's your right. You

9 can waive it or not.

10 THE WITNESS: Jim, what's your advice?
1 MR. MC CABE: | would say given the fact
12 it's on videotape, you can waive it.

13 MR. LO COCO: Sinceit's on videotape,
14 you can simply waiveit.

15 THEWITNESS: Sure.

16 (At 5:21 p.m. the deposition concluded.)
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 STATE OF WISCONSIN )

2 MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

3 I, KATHY A. HALMA, Registered

4 Professiona Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

5 State of Wisconsin, do hereby certify that the video

6 deposition of CARDINAL TIMOTHY M. DOLAN, was taken

7 before me at the New York Archdiocean Offices, 1011 1st

8 Avenue, New York, New York, on the 20th day of

9 February, 2013, commencing at 1:30 in the afternoon.

10 That it was taken at the instance of the

11 Claimants upon verbal interrogatories.

12 That said statement was taken to be used

13 in an action now pending in the UNITED STATES DISTRICT
14 COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN BANKRUPTCY
15 COURT in which the ARCHDIOCESE OF MILWAUKEE isthe

16 Debtor.
17 APPEARANCES
18 JEFF ANDERSON & ASSOCIATES, PA, 366

19 Jackson Street, Suite 100, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55101,

20 by MR. JEFF ANDERSON and MR. MICHAEL G. FINNEGAN,
21 jeff @andersonadvocates.com and

22 mike@andersonadvocates.com, appeared on behalf of the

23 Certain Personal Injury Claimants.

24 WHY TE HIRSCHBOECK DUDEK, S.C., 555 East

25 WHells Street, Suite 1900, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 53202,
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1 by MR. FRANCIS H. LOCOCO, flococo@whdlaw.com, appeared

2 on behalf of the Debtor.

3 ALSO PRESENT: MR. JERRY TOPCZEWSKI,
4 Milwaukee Archdiocese; and MR. JAMES P. McCABE, General
5 Counsd, Archdiocese of New York.

6 That said deponent, before examination,

7 was sworn to testify the truth, the whole truth, and

8 nothing but the truth relative to said cause.

9 That the foregoing is afull, true and

10 correct record of all the proceedings had in the matter
11 of thetaking of said deposition, as reflected by my

12 origina machine shorthand notes taken at said time and
13 place.

14

15

16

17

Notary Publicin and
18

for the State of Wisconsin
19

20

Dated this 22nd day of February, 2013,
21

Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
22

23
24
25
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